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PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
CHAIR MOLINA: .. . (gavel). . . The Committee of the Whole meeting for March 5, 2009 is
now in session. It's three minutes after the hour of 9:00. Good morning, everyone.
Thank you for being here for our meeting today. For the record, we have in attendance
Committee Members Gladys Baisa, Sol P. Kaho`ohalahala, Wayne K. Nishiki,
Mike Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: And running today's meeting is yours truly, Chairman of the Committee,
Mike Molina. And joining us this morning is Jo Anne Johnson. Good morning,
Members. And also, we have from Hana, Mr. Bill Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning. We have a rather ambitious agenda here today, Members,
and we do have a number of members from the public signed up to testify. So, we're
going to get right into that business today. But before that, the Chair would like to
recognize Staff who are here with us this morning--our Committee Analyst
Kirstin Hamman, as well as Committee Secretary Camille Sakamoto. And from the
Corporation Counsel's office, we have David Galazin. I got it right today. And also we
have from the Public Works Department, the Director, Mr. Milton Arakawa as well. The
Chair would like to go over a few ground rules before we start public testimony this
morning. You'll be given three minutes to testify and an additional three minutes after all
others have testified, if you so choose. You will hear our Committee Staff announce
when you hit that three-minute mark, which is basically your signal to end your
testimony or you can wrap up soon after. So, with that said, and please be sure to state
your name and any organization that you may be representing. Members, we have three
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items that's listed on the agenda. Just for your information and the public's information,
Committee of the Whole Item 57 relates to a resolution authorizing proceedings in
eminent domain for acquisition of real property interests in Lahaina; Committee of the
Whole Item 2(2) is, relates to nominations to boards, committees, and commissions; and
Committee of the Whole 15 is a resolution authorizing the sale of structures at
Kapuka`ulua, formerly known as Montana Beach in Paia, Maui. It will take me a while
to get accustomed to that name. So, anyway, let's go ahead and start with public
testimony. First to testify on Committee of the Whole Item 57 is Aranda Kahaialii,
followed by Linda Nolan who will also be testifying on Committee of the Whole Item 57.
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MS. KAHAIALII: . . . Morning, ladies and gentlemen.
CHAIR MOLINA: Morning.
MS. KAHAIALII: My name is Aranda Kahaialii. I am here in support of issue number 57. I
reside at 570 Wainee Street. Been there for several years. Have. . .been flooded more
than once. . .to the extent of having waist-high water in my living room. Knowing fully
that, yes, I do live in a flood zone, was told that. . .the issues were being taken care of
numerous times, numerous occasions. Now. . .anytime it rains, I worry for myself, my
family, the retired people around me that can't move as fast as myself. I'm a youngster in
my retired community--that's Wainee Street, Wainee neighborhood. We do need the
support, not only of the County--taking care of the culvert that's right directly in front of
my house, keeping the ditch clean, changing the level of the, the dirt in the culvert so that
everything flows properly. It seems like. . .we're not taken seriously as far as when we
do bring up the issues--not only for just this small amount of people that are here, but for
people that reach farther. The Salvation Army gets flooded every single time. And
they're there to be helping people in, in the time of need, when we are getting flooded.
And they get so flooded that they can't help the people. You know I, I just really would
like people to take. . .take a look at what's going on and really think things out. And, you
know, where has the money gone? I heard that we have had money allotted for, for our
situation. . .correcting the flow of the water and. . .it, it, it hasn't been used properly. And
now the men that I'm talking to that are supposed to be fixing the situation that's been
fought for, for 30 years are my age. I'm 40 years old, you know. Are we waiting for all
of these people to be educated more or you know why was this done and why was this
allowed and why is the water allowed to be dumped. . .in our backyards basically?
And. . .I know a lot of other people are here to express to you. But it's really saddening
and. . .not to mention losing animals and. . .you. . .it, it goes on, but it's something that
needs to be dealt with. And I thank you all very much and. . .aloha.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for your testimony. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier? Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks very much for coming today. And I remember when
that whole area was flooded. Have you been given any timeline as to the project that,
`cause it's not the full project that's before us, it's only part one of who knows how many
parts. Have you been told how you would be protected and what, you know, the timeline
is?
MS. KAHAIALII: No, we, I personally, have not been given a lot of information. They gather
information from us as far as County workers and such. We don't really get any response
to that. Maybe they'll come and spray for weeds or such, but not what really needs to be
done in the area. No timeline has been given.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I'll try to get that information today for you. Thank
you.
MS. KAHAIALII: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson. Committee Members, any other
questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Ms. Kahaialii.
Next to testify on Committee of the Whole Item 57 will be Linda Nolan, and she'll be
followed by Rocky Iwamura who will also be testifying on Committee of the
Whole Item 57.
MS. NOLAN: Good morning. Thank you.
. . . (sigh). . . This hits my heart very deeply. My husband and I moved into the
neighborhood thinking this was going to be our dream home. My husband's had
Parkinson's for 28 years.
. . . Pardon me?
. . . My husband's had Parkinson's for 28 years and his dementia is increasing. When we
first moved in, the house flooded and he was there with the shop vac and electrical cords,
and they were floating all over the water and he was trying to vacuum up the water as I'm
having someone empty the pool. So, it's kind of like throwing a cup of water on a forest
fire. It doesn't happen.
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Ms. Nolan, could you bring the microphone closer to you so we
can get you recorded? Yeah. You have a very nice voice.
MS. NOLAN: Uh .. .
. . . Unless one lives in the area and understands what we go through each time it starts to
rain. . .and you know the anxiety and the panic attacks that we go through, you can't
understand the feeling that happens to us as a neighborhood. . .when the weather is like
that.
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. . . The cleanup. . .is extraordinary. My house flooded last, a year ago last December. I
had to have my husband taken to the mainland. . .and I did the cleaning by myself. It
took me over two months before it was even habitable. I'm still dealing with issues. I
have to have electricians and plumbers come out. You can't imagine the monetary
expenses that we have to go through. And then when I hear that this has been going on
for 30 years and there was a $14 million windfall--I hate to call it a windfall, I don't
know what else to call it, I'd like to be given $14 million to take care of the problem--and
it was pushed aside. Rocky, bless his heart. . .he's been planning meetings for us in the
neighborhood and, and we meet with these people who come, and it's a feeling of
condescending, to me, when I get the feeling that the most important issue is for the
people that we're meeting with to go get their coffee and donuts and to pick up their
paycheck. This is so frustrating. I can't tell you the agony that we go through. I live at
580 Wainee Street, I'm next door to Aranda. I've been out there when she and her family
have been down in the culvert, in the ditch digging out the trenches and the mud and the
silt and the dirt because the City is not doing it.
. . . (sigh). . . I am so angry. I am so frustrated.

MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MS. NOLAN: I am so annoyed that we are getting no help. When I had my husband, in this
situation and the house was flooded and he's got electrical cords and they're floating all
over the house--it was amazing we weren't killed. I had to have the Fire Department
come get to my husband because I couldn't reach him.
CHAIR MOLINA: . . . Ms. Nolan, I'm going to have to ask you to end your testimony. But I'll
give you the option if you want to come back for another three minutes after everyone
has testified. Would you like that option or are you done?
MS. NOLAN: May I think about it?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I'll. . .have to ask you to make a decision. Do you want to come
back?
MS. NOLAN: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. I'll open the floor up for questions from the Members if they have for
you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony,
Ms. Nolan.
MS. NOLAN: Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify on Committee of the Whole Item 57, we have
Rocky Iwamura, followed by Dr. Lorrin Pang who will be testifying on Committee of the
Whole Item 2.
MR. IWAMURA: . . . My name is Rocky Iwamura. Thank you for letting me speak this
morning. I just want to say a few words. You know the flood, the watershed program in
Lahaina, we had that $14 million and it's been about 30 years already we talking about
this, and we are very disappointed and frustration [sic] because of this situation. Why
did the $14 million you place in the backburner. . .where did the $14 million went?
. . . We ask you the question. Another thing is that on Honopili [sic] Highway next to the
aqua [sic] swimming pool in Lahaina, there's two big culvert under the Honopili [sic]
Highway. It's been there many, many years and this is the major problem in flooding our
area. Every time get big rains. . .the all the rain come down and flooded all the
neighborhood. I know it, is it illegal to get any outlet going in a private property? You
should uphold the law. And the other thing I going tell you is that on the drainage
problem in Wainee Street, it's built in 1800. . .and it's all messed up.
. . . What we saying is just help an inch. That's all we asking for. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Iwamura. Committee Members, questions for the testifier?
Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Rocky, with regard to the, the two culverts underneath the
Highway, have you called the State Highways Division to find out if they have plans to
clean those out?
MR. IWAMURA: . . . Well, I have no comment on that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, you haven't called anyone to see if they can clean it up?
MR. IWAMURA: Well, I did.
. . . I did call the Governor aide, Mayor aide, and all the politician and department head
came to see the culvert. You know what they did? They just come there and look and
they walk away. No comment or anything like that. It's very, very sad.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'll see if I can get an answer to that for you. I know there's
a dispute, Rocky, but, you know, unfortunately, that's not part of what we're considering
today but I'll deal with that separately. Thank you.
MR. IWAMURA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Committee Members, any other questions for
the testifier? Member Pontanilla?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Rocky, for being here this
morning. I understand that the State is going to improve H'piilani Highway, convert that
two lanes to four lanes from Lahainaluna Road to. ..I, I think it's Aholo Road. And that
improvement, you know, passes that culvert that you talk about. Maybe you can check
with the State of Hawaii in regards to if there's going to be any improvement done to the
culvert that comes across H'piilani Highway from. ..I, I think it's across the swimming
pool. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Okay. Seeing no other questions from
Members, thank you, Mr. Iwamura, for your testimony.
MR. IWAMURA: Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Next to testify on Committee of the Whole Item 2, Lorrin Pang,
and he'll be followed by Pat Sullivan who will be testifying on Committee of the
Whole Item 57. Good morning, Dr. Pang.
MR. PANG: Good morning. My name is Lorrin Pang. I think today I can testify as the District
Health Officer for Maui County. If I gave this presentation in Geneva, they would roll
their eyes because it's obvious and you'd be wasting our time. If I gave this presentation
in Louisiana, they would roll their eyes to say how naive can this guy be. In the past few
years, we have seen a widespread serious problem of conflict of interest, financial, in
regulatory and governing agencies. It cuts across Federal, FDA, and NIH, et cetera, to
the State and local agencies. Indeed the issue came up recently in the Maui County
Council regarding ties to developers followed by accusations that the Ethical Review
Committee itself may have had conflicts. Sometimes we recognize this problem and
attempt to control it say, for example, in the court system while other groups seem to
foster it usually under the principal that members of these commissions should be
stakeholders. Unfortunately, the stakeholder term has been twisted to imply financial
stakeholders to the exclusion of other groups, especially consumers. It should be the
other way around. We are under the delusion that if the financial stakeholders can work
out their competing interest then all is well. We have often excused conflict of interest
with claims by very senior members that their interests can be put aside. This has been
shown and published not to be the case with the FDA. Such claims are either delusional
at best or lies at worst. Next, we often hear that we need expertise at a very high level
and that the pool of candidates are all conflicted. On the contrary, there are a lot of smart
people in Maui, experts in unrelated areas and fields. They are quick studies who are not
afraid to ask pertinent questions in a transparent way. As in the court system, those with
conflict can still give testimony and evidence, but they should not be left to design the
hearing process, they should not be left to design the hearing process nor be allowed to
make the final decision. Please remove all members from the Water Commission who
have financial conflict of interest on both sides, commercial as well as say, for example,
taro users else you will risk that the public voice will fall on deaf ears. Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Pang. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.
MR. PANG: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify on Committee of the Whole Item 57 is Pat Sullivan, to be
followed by Bob Sullivan who will also be testifying on the same matter. Good morning,
Mr. Sullivan.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: Good morning, Council Chair and Council Members. My name is
Pat Sullivan and I own 554 Wainee Street which is the house right across from the
Hongwanji. And anyway, what I'd like to do is to highly recommend the acquisition of
Peter Martin's property in, in, for this project, Federal flood project. It's a small part of
our problem in that neighborhood, but my point is that please approve the acquisition of
the land. In 1971, I got off the bus, it could have been 1972, I got off the bus from
playing a basketball game at the War Memorial for Lahainaluna, and my coach Larry
Cairnen(?) dropped me off. In the bus there's mostly boarders that were playing with me
at the time, but. . .I stepped off in a foot of water at 550 Wainee Street where my dad
lives. And we have had, probably, four floods since then. And the, the real problem is
the Aquatic Center retention basin right next to us. There's three 24-inch lines that are
about a foot off the ground and they come directly across the property. I remember when
I saw Doc Morris's car went off the highway one year and, and they used to, I think, use
the drain lines to irrigate the cane field in there. And those need to be--and Mr. Cabanilla
who's here, he's the one who probably can address this most directly, but the retention
basin has not, is not a retention basin. Our immediate help is if that is taken care of, then
down the road we can, hopefully, see the light of day. The problem is. . .in West Maui,
we have heard about affordable housing. . .since the '70s and '80s, the bypass, the
drainage, and the hospital. And I don't know, I think we may have to secede from the
County and we'll, we probably provide, what, 25, 30 percent of the income to Maui
County and we'll just do our own little thing over there and get this stuff done. But it is
time that something was done with the retention basin immediately--that's what needs to
be taken care of like. . .tomorrow. And. . .we had the good fortune of my classmate, Wes
Nohara, from the West Maui County, West Maui Soils Conservation; he did, about five
years ago with Maui Land and Pine's trucks, he did some work to help prevent flooding
down upon us. But the State, Bishop. . .Bishop Estate, Amfac, and the County are
responsible for the flood that comes across. You've done the improvements to--which
are good things for the shelter and the, and the parks--but I've got a video for you guys of
2002 December where the flood from that area comes right down into the basin, then it
comes across the street -MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: --and floods. But I'll, I'll talk some more at the end.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 5, 2009

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Sullivan. So, would you like to come back for
additional three minutes then -MR. P. SULLIVAN: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: --after . .(inaudible). . .
MR. P. SULLIVAN: Unless somebody has questions.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, you know what, I'm going to ask you to refrain from
asking questions. Mr. Sullivan, will come back for three minutes -MR. P. SULLIVAN: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: --after everyone is done.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. And at that point, after your three, last three minutes we'll have
questions for you. Next to testify is Bob Sullivan who will be testifying on Committee of
the Whole Item 57, followed by Lynn Rasmussen who will be testifying on Committee of
the Whole Item 15. Good morning.
MR. B. SULLIVAN: Yes. Good morning. Good morning. My name is Bob Sullivan. I have,
we've lived in 550 Wainee Street since 1972. Our first flood was in 1973. I wish
to. . .state that we, that I am certainly for the, the purchase of this particular piece of
property.
.. . Let's see here, oh, in about ten years ago . .(laughter). . I testified before the
Council and I told the Council, at the time, that I had grown to be an old man. Well, at
that time, I was 76; and now I've really grown to be an old man-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: .. . (laughter).. .
MR. SULLIVAN: --and it's 86, at 86. So, as far as I can remember, I think. . .the County has
passed over the Federal monies that has been available at least twice in the past. And this
would probably be the third time that they have avoided taking advantage of that money
in order to correct the, the flooding there. . .at the, on the Prison Street area.
. . . I, I kind of, kind of a funny ironic thing, I--about ten years ago, I built a flood wall to
protect our house, and I built. . .two, two of those cement-block high. It was, so it was
about, what, 16, 18 inches. I had one entrance out in the front where I put sandbags when
the flood came, and it has saved our house twice, but we, of course, lost the house really
badly in, I think it was '91 or '92. So, anyway, the last time, last year we had a
super-rain in Lahaina, but it was right in Lahaina, and the funny part about it was my
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flood wall kept the water in and, and, instead of worrying about it coming in from
outside, it came off my roof and, and filled up inside the flood wall, and we had another
little problem of the flooding. Uh. . .I think that's all. It's just wonderful if something
could be done about solving this problem over the years . . . (laughter). . . Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Sullivan. And I might,
want to add that you're quite spry for a very young 86. Mr. Sullivan, if you could just
hang on for a moment? Members, you have questions for the testifier? Okay. Seeing
none, thank you very much for your testimony, Mr. Sullivan. Next to testify on
Committee of the Whole Item 15, we have Lynn Rasmussen, followed by
Michael Howden who will be testifying on Committee of the Whole Item 2. Good
morning.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Good morning. I'm Lynn Rasmussen. I'm speaking for myself, also for
Susun White, the ED at Paia Youth Center, Paia Youth Council. And I'm not speaking
for the board and I'll explain why in a minute. And I'm hoping that I can work with the
board, work with the Council to come up with a solution for rather than putting this
building out to bid to gift or sell it to PYC, to the Paia Youth Council. And this is the
reason why. It's a home-like building. It has great materials for the beach. It's tight.
We have radio station. We have video programs. We have community programs. We
allow, we provide broadband access for hundreds of children every day. And these kids
are coming in and out, and we don't have enough room. With this building, we could put
it right on our site and we could have, we could expand our access and protect it. Now, if
we go for funding for. . .a new building--which we're going to have to do, we have over
350 fulltime members now--we're going to have to. . .it costs millions and it will cost
even more as you know it costs millions to build one now. It will cost even more for the
beach and then we'll have an institutional feel. Now, the reason why the board's not here
and the community is not here is because our ducks aren't in a row. They're never going
to be in a row. We can't go for a bid. Nobody will fund a bid. You can't do that. We
can't, we this building and a deadline, we could go for, we could go for funding. We
haven't tapped into our capital funding opportunities with Weinberg. We haven't tapped
into any of our funding opportunities. We've put them off for years knowing that
eventually we'd have to replace that old building. Now, we can maintain the old
building, keep it for a beat-up old beach house, use it for the café, use it for all the kinds
of things we want to do that we don't have room for. We, we have dreams to do things
like Junior Lifeguard. Brian McCafferty has wanted to have a canoe club there for years.
We could expand to all those things if we had, if we were able to put our office stuff and
computers in the back and we're able to put beach stuff in the front. It only makes sense.
Now, our problem is our ducks are not in a row. The board's not willing to go for a
building that they can't afford to move. But it's a catch-22. I co-founded Paia Youth
Center. I, our ducks were never in a row. They're never going to be in a row because
these are poor people, and kids of poor people, and kids who have parents who don't
have time. This is not a rich person's arts organization. It's not a rich person school.
The ducks are not going to be in a row. We need County help. Now, if you would gift us
or sell this building to us, we could move it down the street--which is an appropriate use
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for it, and we'd save millions of dollars. Plus we wouldn't be coming to you for the
money to build it. Every other youth center is dependent completely on County money -MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --and we are not. We use tobacco money and State money and we use
County money. And we are fully prepared to be self-sufficient in that place. Sufficient
away from County money if we ever got caught [sic], cut that's how we operate.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right, Ms. Rasmussen-MS. RASMUSSEN: So that's it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Are you completely done with your testimony?
MS. RASMUSSEN: I'm all done with it. Uh-huh.
CHAIR MOLINA: Any additional? Okay. Committee Members, questions for the testifier on
this particular matter? Member Kaho`ohalahala, followed by Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Ms. Rasmussen,
explain to us what you mean your ducks lined up in a row?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. In order to, to move the building, we have to get funding to move
the building, we have to have the lease from or we have to purchase the property. We
have a 10-year lease right now, and we just renewed our lease with A&B for 10 more
years. Now, we'd have to purchase the property or we'd have to extend the lease to
25 years. A&B has been waiting for us to come with a purchase price for a very long
time. The reality is is that we can't motivate people or create a board that's going to do
that unless we have some kind of reason or deadline--the way the Hui did when they had,
you know, when they had to come up for it, they would. And we have many people who
said they want to help, you know, and we could pull it off. Now, what if we couldn't pull
it off? What if you said here try it, what if we made out a deal with you guys and we said
here give us six months to get our ducks in a row, that if we could do this we'll do it and
if not we'll put it out to bid then? Maybe we could work out some kind of deal that's,
that makes sense for us to be able to put our--you know, we called Weinberg, and they
can't help with a bid. They won't do that. So, we can't be involved in the bidding
process. We have to, we have to outright purchase and move. We've talked to Sniffens.
Lisa Starr is on our board. The Starr family has worked, they've moved half a dozen
buildings with, and we have expertise for functionally moving it. We have people
who've come forward who'd like to help raise the money to do it and I believe we have
all the resources. Now, our board's not here because they were saying -CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me. I'm sorry.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: --we aren't in a row.
CHAIR MOLINA: Ms. Rasmussen-MS. RASMUSSEN: Sony.
CHAIR MOLINA: --I think you answered Member Kaho`ohalahala's question.
MS. RASMUSSEN: That's okay. Sony.
CHAIR MOLINA: Another question?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Just a follow-up. So what is your proposal?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Well, my proposal is for us to--I'd have to sit down and actually write it
out with and work it out. My proposal is to work out with a couple of Members of the
County Council some kind of workable deal that says the youth center will, will purchase
or you'll gift the, the property and we will move it and construct it and see to, you know,
on the site. We'll have to get the permits to do that. Now, fortunately, have all the
permit processes done because of the, not the process, but the information done because
of the skate park for the SMA. We've done all that work because of the skate park and
it's less than two years, three years old. So, it wouldn't be that much to update some of
these things. So, we'd have to work out the whole process we'd have to go through in
order to move that thing from there to there.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
MS. RASMUSSEN: I mean-CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Member Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you. . .Ms. Rasmussen?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I think you answered my question because I heard that
you have someone from Sniffen Express on your Board.
MS. RASMUSSEN: No, we don't have.. .
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, no?
MS. RASMUSSEN: We don't have the Sniffens on our board, we have Lisa Starr and then, and
Hugh Starr and Lisa Starr have worked with Sniffens half a dozen times to move houses.
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And she was out there with the Sniffen's people actually saying what would it take to
move it down the road.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, I see.
MS. RASMUSSEN: We're right down the road, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No, I understand.
MS. RASMUSSEN: And so it's a big thing to move it. It's not cheap. It's not cheap. It's not,
this would, but building a new building, we'd get an institutional feel ...(change tape,
start 1B). . . materials that are in this building, they're fabulous.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: And we would have use of it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I, I think you answered my question.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Committee Members, any other questions for
the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Ms. Rasmussen.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify on Committee of the Whole Item 2, we have
Michael Howden, followed by Mark Sheehan who will be testifying on two items,
Committee of the Whole Item 15 and Committee of the Whole Item 2. Good morning,
Mr. Howden.
MR. HOWDEN: Good morning, Chairman Molina, Members of the Council. I'm here to testify
on three nominees made by the present Administration to the Board of Water Supply. I
feel that each and all of these nominees are tainted, fatally tainted in terms of their ability
to serve the public. I would just say that in the three years that I've been on the Water
Board from the beginning we brought, brought up public trust doctrine in terms of public
waters, public trust waters both for East Maui and Na Wai Eha. Now, we have three
people proposed by the Administration who seem to be at least from reading
Don Gerbig's letter to the editor. His mean spirited attack on Isaac Moriwake of Earth
Justice. To have no sense of what the law of the land is in terms of access to public,
public trust waters. John Hoxie is Vice-president for Agricultural Operations for HC&S.
We're potentially in a very adversarial position with HC&S in terms of access to these
waters. And then you have Jeffrey Rebugio whose part of the Kaanapali Development
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COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 5, 2009

Corporation, you know, another ill advised development, yet another ill advised
development in West Maui where we're also short of water. I spoke with
Member Victorino a couple days ago and he asked if there were other qualified and
concerned candidates for these positions and indeed there are. I think as Dr. Pang said
it's really important with our boards and commissions to be free from even the
appearance of conflict of interest. I don't know who advised Charmaine to make these
nominations but I would really urge the Council to reject these three nominees and send
them back to the Administration and ask for qualified and impartial potential members
for the Board of Water Supply. I think it would really hurt the board in terms of the work
that it's doing, the support that especially over the last three years we've taken in support
of Na Wai Eha and an equitable solution to the waters of East Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Howden. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.
MR. HOWDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify is Mark Sheehan, and he'll be testifying first on Committee of
the Whole Item 15 and Committee, followed by Committee of the Whole Item 2. And
after Mr. Sheehan will be Lawrence Cabanilla who will be testifying on Committee of the
Whole Item 57. Good morning.
MR. SHEEHAN: Good morning, Chairman, Council Members. I'm Mark Sheehan. I'm
President of the Board of Maui Tomorrow. We discussed both these items at our meeting
on Tuesday. I want to agree with Mr. Howden and Dr. Pang that we can do, we can do
better to reject these nominees to the Water Board and find people who are less, less
committed to a particular organization either to the sugar industry or to development. We
need to look at, there's a Chinese proverb that when the winds of change are blowing,
some people build walls and some people build windmills. I think we need to stop doing
things the way we have done them and look at the fact that we are in a very serious
situation in this County and in this country. And if you want to understand a little bit
more about it I'd suggest you pick Thomas Freedman's book "Hot, Flat, and Crowded",
which really goes into great detail about the extent of the problem and how we can
choose, solve it. I came to talk about an issue that I care about personally and though
I'm, which is the building at Baldwin Beach. I watched this property being built and I
think it's a great mistake to chop it up and to try to move it. Having watched it being
built and how meticulously it was built, I think basically you're going to destroy this
building in the process of moving it. It would be like making orange crates out of grand
pianos it's just really a stupid idea. And to say that the County has no use for the
building is really unfortunate. There has been no public discussion about it and I think
there needs to be a great deal of public hearing with regard to this building. It has been,
there is a North Shore Heritage Park that has been proposed. This would be a prefect
resource center for an environmental resource center which was proposed by the previous
Administration and I think it's a terrific idea. There are hula halaus who would love to
come in there and take care of this property. But the County needs to, and the Parks
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Department needs to take some responsibility for maintaining this thing and prevent it
from being vandalized and let somebody come in there. It's beautiful the way it is. It
would be a catastrophe. Rob Parsons had some contractors come down there and asked,
you know, could this be moved and they said, well, you could do it. You'd be crazy to
do it but it could be done but you'll basically destroy a beautiful building. The question
comes up about the, will it be destroyed over the, in the next few years? Well, yes, we
have an incredible beach situation that should be resolved because the revetment that was
built years ago to protect the lime kiln or to position the lime kiln is the reason why that
beach is being torn away. The, A&B who built it or whoever built it should be required
to remove those rocks so that this beach is not destroyed. Every year we lose a few more
feet of this beach when in September and October the beach is swept away. But this is a
fantastic building that offers all kinds of opportunities for cultural and environmental
groups. I can think of a half a dozen ways why, of how it can support itself. Please leave
it where it is and find a use for it. It's a fantastic building. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Sheehan. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier on either of the two items that he testified on? Seeing none, thank you for your
testimony, Mr. Sheehan. Next to testify on Committee of the Whole Item 57, we have
Lawrence Cabanilla, followed by Rory Frampton who will also be testifying on the same
item.
. . . Good morning.
MR. CABANILLA: . . . Good morning. Thank you, Mr Chairman and Council Members, for
this opportunity. My name is Lawrence Cabanilla, born and raised in Lahaina for 65
years. Through my 65 years of living in Lahaina, I have been directly affected by four
major floods--that is not to say that there weren't more, just that I have been physically
involved in four. In '54, heaving rains caused flooding in Lahaina pump camp. The
flooding was extensive, but damage was lessened by opening a drain valve. Around
1960, the Kahoma Stream overflowed into the pineapple cannery. This was caused by
debris clogging the mouth of Kahoma Stream around the bridge area. The last two
happened about 40 years later. These were the ones that affected Lahaina Town. They
both came after the closing of Pioneer Mill. Coincidence? I believe that when the mill
was operating, they made sure that the water was diverted away from the low-lying areas
and utilized--that wasn't their intention more than a convenience for irrigation. The plus
side was that it controlled flooding conditions. Each time the flood damage could have
been remedied with simple adjustments or existing resources. The good news is that the
structures, both natural and man-made by Pioneer Mill, are still there. We should utilize
these resources and plan strategies that will make the most of their capabilities until a
more permanent solution can be found. There are luas or punawais that can act as surface
water catchments or retention basins. They can be bled or spilled into main ditches to
flow towards the kahawai or streams. The kahawai will then provide a controlled flow
into the ocean. Because water will always find its way, existing culverts, ditches, and
other means of drainage must be maintained to ensure that they are free of debris and will
not resist surface flow that might backup and cause flooding. We cannot control any act
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of God. But we can help ourselves by trying to work with the resources that are available
at this time. We can reduce damage caused by flooding and provide more time for
planning. If we are sincere about helping ourselves and others from flooding conditions,
we need to continue planning. But at the same time, we should be using and exercising
the resources . . . (cleared throat). . . left by the old-timers who have faced this crisis and
dealt with them successfully in the past. We need to come together, put politics aside,
and create a solution that will prove, provide a more protected and harmonious
community. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Cabanilla. Questions for the testifier?
Councilmember Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Cabanilla, for coming.
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me, Mr. Cabanilla, you have a question for you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to clarify because, you know, listening to your
comments you're, you're basically advocating that we find, I guess, with the existing
structures and revetments and basins, that we fmd a different solution. Are you, are you
advocating that we not go forward with the flood control project?
MR. CABANILLA: No. I'm not saying to put aside the flood control project. All I'm saying is
we need immediate help, yeah. And the immediate help that I'm proposing is what we do
have that had been in the past while Pioneer Mill was in existence, yeah, to help control
flood damages. We cannot control flooding. That's act of God. But we can control
flood damages. During, during the term of the plantation, they had the resources and they
built resources to maintain their plantation. But in the same time, it also helped control
flood damages by diverting waters from the punawais and the main ditches into the
natural form of drainage which was the river and the kahawais, the stream and kahawais
and. . .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, if I, so if I understand what you're saying, Mr. Cabanilla,
then it's like, because only the first phase or just the land acquisition is, you know, the
lower part of the flood control project is not going to provide immediate relief. What
you're saying is in the interim to do these other measures so that there is better control?
MR. CABANILLA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. CABANILLA: Yeah. And that even like what Mr. Sullivan said about the so-called
retention basin by the Aquatic Center--Shaw Street was the natural flow that I can
remember, and Prison Street to the ocean. But what has happened now, they raised Shaw
Street, yeah, okay, and as they raise Shaw Street because of 505 and the buildings that,
you know, progress right. So, now the terrain within the area of Lahainaluna and
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Kahoma Stream is like a "V" yeah or a flow which is what water will find its way. So, it
comes to a point where the Aquatic Center is now, you know, it's diverted into that
particular area. And because it cannot hold the water it overflows on the lowest part of
the highway which is what Mr. Sullivan is saying where the culvert is and sadly to say it,
that's where the full damage, you know, will occur. So, all I'm saying is that if we take
care of the water coming down from the mauka side, from the very top, and little by little
divert it out into what we already have--which is the river or the stream--we can control
part of the damage. Because if Pioneer Mill could do that by what they had, why
couldn't we? I mean the, the greatest damage came from after Pioneer Mill closed
because there was no vegetation left. There was no furrowing, cane field furrowing lines
that could hold water, hold water, hit the main ditch then flow to the reservoirs and be
bled off into other main ditches into the river.
Mr. Cabanilla, thank you, I think you've answered
Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA:
Member Johnson's question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I really appreciate it because I think that, you know, my
thinking is, is sort of like yours, too, because this is just the land acquisition alone. It's
not going to give you flood protection.
MR. CABANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Not for while.
MR. CABANILLA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
MR. CABANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Johnson.
MR. CABANILLA: Excuse me. Yeah, one more okay? Now, more so with the economy
hardship, this is the kind of stuff that we should be looking into. Thank you.
Hang on, Mr. Cabanilla, you have one more question.
CHAIR MOLINA:
Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Mr. Cabanilla?
MR. CABANILLA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: I think you bring to light some of the, the
historical context for the which the plantation was responsible in terms of diverting
perhaps flood waters through their fields and then sending them to the kahawai that bleed
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out to the sea. And that you bring up the two, two different points that Shaw Street and
Prison Street used to be those kahawai.
MR. CABANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So, between Shaw Street and Prison Street is
what?
MR. CABANILLA: Okay, wait now--not "kahawai", but the low-lying natural drainage to the
ocean.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Correct. They use, one used to be a canal.
MR. CABANILLA: Canal Street -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Canal.. .
MR. CABANILLA: --is where Kam III, between Kam III School and the old courthouse was
and there were, there were canals before the street because I remember the area, yeah.
And had big ditches in the back of Burger King where Mr. Hew house stay, you know,
had big ditches all the way up to Malu-ulu-olele Park almost.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Right.
MR. CABANILLA: You know to drain the water out which was Canal Street.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And they've all, they've all been hardened
today. They're, they're now.. .
MR. CABANILLA: Yeah, they're, they're roads already so.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the area that the flooding
currently occurs and you said the largest one perhaps was 40 years after that 1950, '54 is
I think what we had an issue with in 1992, 1993 here when the flooding affected those
homes in Wainee. But I wanted to also put out that part of our situation here is the fact
that Wainee is really the wetlands of Lahaina and it is the lowest point, in fact, Moku'ula
is attached to Wainee. And what we have in fact done is that we've now placed homes in
Wainee.
Mr. CABANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And if you understand Wainee, the ponding or
the settling of the water, that we put homes in the place and auwae what happens? The
water goes to those places because they have normally and naturally gone to those places
and it's that area that had served as mitigation, wetlands mitigated runoff and flooding.
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So, we have in part created our own problems by ignoring perhaps some of the, the
understanding of what was there, what was known to be there, and then now we've
placed houses in there. So, when Mr. Sullivan talks about putting a concrete wall around
his house and now the flooding is in the wall -MR. CABANILLA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --well, Mr. Sullivan is in the wetland itself.
MR. CABANILLA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So that is part of the reason. So, I agree that we
need to, to mitigate and make change today but I wanted to also put out that there is
knowledge and information that has always been there and perhaps it is prudent on our
part to make sure that we understand some of that so that we don't make the same
mistakes. So, but since you bring up some of the, the experience then some of the
experience perhaps is in the knowledge of understanding those places.
MR. CABANILLA: And I, I, I readily understand what you saying because that was our
playground, you know, and I know we used to play in the mud and make paper sail boats
and sail 'em in that area that you talking about. And then Moku'ulua [sic] , what?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Moku'ula, yeah.
MR. CABANILLA: Yeah. Excuse my language. Which was along Shaw Street--had one big
pond over there. Okay, before 505 was ever there, you know, and that was a full
drainage from Wainee Village going out.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Right.
MR. CABANILLA: Whatever, you know, water that overflowed the low-lying area, yeah,
flowed out of there. And there was a pond there, you know, and I remember the pond by
the old Salvation Army place because I used to have a garden there when I was going
Kam III School, you know.
CHAIR MOLINA: Excuse me but, Mr. Cabanilla.
MR. CABANILLA: But my mom died-CHAIR MOLINA: Sorry to interrupt, yeah, but-MR. CABANILLA: . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: --is there another, is there another question?
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COUNCILMEMBER ICAHO' OHALAHALA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: I know, because we're getting a good history lesson on that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: I thank-MR. CABANILLA: . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: I thank you for acknowledging that, that there is
some history in your work and experience in terms of flood control, but there is also
history and knowledge in the place itself. So, mahalo for your.. .
MR. CABANILLA: Yeah, and I really feel that you know what is.. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Hang on, Mr. Cabanilla. Yeah. I get one more guy with a question.
Hang on. Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Member Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Popular guy today, Mr. Cabanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: For real.
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA Thank you, Mr. Cabanilla, for being here this morning.
You know you talked, very interestingly you talk about canals. Who used to maintain the
canals at that time?
.

MR. CABANILLA: I remember at that time would be County because we had County workers
in there and then also the, the Mill itself, workers. You know so it was a joint thing to
me. It wasn't a selected group where, okay, this is your job you do this. No, it was, it
was the benefit for the whole of the community where, okay, we understand that this
place going hold water back and it's going to flood this area. So somebody jumped in
and then a group of people jumped in and just do the work.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. And I'll ask the question to Public
Works, you know, about the maintenance of the canals. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Okay. Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, question.
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CHAIR MOLINA: And, Members, just a reminder--please tie your questions into Committee of
the Whole Item 57, the flood control project, yeah. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And, Mr. Cabanilla, thank you for
your testimony and your, relating your knowledge of the area. I know you reside next to
the swimming pool basin-MR. CABANILLA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --have you always resided there?
MR. CABANILLA: No, I resided. . .in Lahaina pump, Wainee Village.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. CABANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And Wainee Village was mauka of that area, yeah?
MR. CABANILLA: Mauka the area, mauka the Aquatic Center.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. CABANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and, you know, I, I also have to agree with
Member Kaho`ohalahala about wetland areas and because it's like we allowed building in
that area. Would be compared to us allowing building in Kealia Pond where all the water
drains too. So that area is prone to receive excess water that comes from mauka side.
Yeah. But I really appreciate your knowledge of the area.
MR. CABANILLA: But, but what is the point where, is it because we built homes or who built
homes there that that's their kuleana. No?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No. I, I think it's allowing homes to be there that created
the problem. I think where we have normal drainages and lowlands that become flooded
seasonally, you know, we should have been more careful in the past -MR. CABANILLA: Right. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --for allowing homes to be built in those areas.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Medeiros, you have another question?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, that's it. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Committee Members, any other questions? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't really have a question. I would like to request if
Mr. Cabanilla would leave his testimony and we could have copies of it--that's what I
would like to request, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Cabanilla, if at a later point we can--Staff, if we could have
copies made for our purposes?
MR. CABANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Any other questions for Mr. Cabanilla? Seeing none, thank you
for your testimony, Mr. Cabanilla. Next to testify on Committee of the Whole Item 57 is
Rory Frampton, to be followed by Jeff Eng who will be testifying on Committee of the
Whole Item 2. And the Chair welcomes the presence of Council Chair Mateo to our
proceedings this morning. Good morning, Mr. Frampton.
MR. FRAMPTON: Good morning. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm Rory Frampton. I'm a land use
planning consultant and I previously provided testimony to this Committee regarding
concerns not so much on the project but the tail-end of the project and the Puamana
extension as we would call it. And I wanted to clarify some information that was
presented after the last time I spoke. It was presented by the Public Works Director, and
in his presentation he indicated that if the project were to be redesigned so that the flows
would go down through the natural outlet at Kauaula Stream that a number of Puamana
properties would have to be condemned or taken. And prior to our testimony I had
worked with an engineer to determine what kind of solutions, what kind of engineering
solutions would be possible, what kind of alternatives are there. And the short answer is
that with some modifications to the existing Puamana channel all of the storm waters
could be passed through the channel to the ocean without taking any properties at
Puamana. But there's a number of ways to design the channel. We looked at one of 'em.
I attached that information it's before you today. And, and so, again, I just wanted to
point that out that it could be done. The second point is and there was some confusion in
the testimony last time as well, there's going to be a drainage basin constructed at the
bottom of Kauaula Stream to receive the storm water flows as well as Kauaula Stream
flows. And this, this water will have two outlets. The lower outlet or the primary outlet
is going to send all the waters down this new channel to the new outlet down near
guardrails, and it's the overflow waters that's going to be going down the Puamana
channel. So, essentially you're going to rerouting the base flow of Kauaula Stream into
this basin and then diverting the stream flows from Kauaula Stream down the coast to a
new ocean outlet about 3,800 feet or so down the coast. And that was another point I just
wanted to clarify in terms of and that's information from the EIS. The third point is all
the lands above where these flood waters are originating are Kamehameha School's
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lands. They were farmed by Pioneer Mill for many years on a lease basis but the lands
where the floods originate and a lot of the areas that Mr. Cabanilla were talking about are
on Kamehameha School's lands that are now mostly vacant. And I'm nervous coming up
here. I don't like speaking out like this on, on projects but, you know, the intent is that
we want to have accurate information before this Council so that you can make a fully
informed decision. It's going to be many, many years before the solution to this project
is, is going to be created 'cause you're going to have to build this huge extension channel
to get to Kauaula Stream and then build another mile of channel to where you get to the
point where this flooding is going to take place. I would hate to see any Federal monies
lost. I hope that the project, that those monies could be used to maybe construct this
basin that we're talking about. My understanding is the construction drawings for that
are nearly complete. I'm just not comfortable about spending money for land acquisition
and for construction of this long channel along the highway at our entrance to Lahaina
when it's really not -MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MR. FRAMPTON: --necessary and it could be accommodated in another way. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Frampton. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony, Mr. Frampton. Next to testify on
Committee of the Whole Item 2, we have Jeff Eng, to be followed by
Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez who will be testifying on Committee of the Whole Item 2 as
well. Good morning, Mr. Director.
MR. ENG: Good morning, Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Council Chair Mateo and Committee
Members. My name is Jeff Eng and I'm the Director of Department of Water Supply.
I'd just like to speak briefly and express my support of Mayor Tavares' three nominees to
the Board of Water Supply, John Hoxie, Don Gerbig, and Jeff Rebugio. I believe that
these three gentlemen will provide and maintain the balance and diversity that we want to
see on all of our County boards and commissions. And I respectfully request your
support of these nominees and I do look forward to working with them. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Director. Committee Members, questions for Director Eng
on the item, Committee of the Whole Item 2? Seeing none, thank you for your
testimony, Mr. Director. Next to testify on Committee of the Whole Item 2, we have
Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez, followed by Rob Parsons who will be testifying on two
items, Committee of the Whole Item 2 and Committee of the Whole Item 15. Good
morning.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Good morning. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members of
the Committee. My name is Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez and I'll be testifying as an
individual. I am testifying in support of the nomination of Warren Shibuya to the Maui
County Planning Commission. I've had an opportunity to observe his work over many
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years of about six years now in various community activities. His work in supporting the
Maui County Senior Fair as a volunteer and also his work as a volunteer member with the
General Plan Advisory Committee. He is a knowledgeable individual. He's a retired
aerospace engineer. I've always observed him in the public situation to be thoughtful, to
be considerate. He does his homework. He actually reads all of the materials and is able
to ask detailed questions about them. He has a concern for the environment. He has a
love for Maui County and I see him as a dedicated, thoughtful, considerate individual. A
volunteer who exemplifies the best of citizenship that we expect of all of our residents
and I would strongly urge the group, the Council, to after your deliberations to appoint
him or move his appointment forward to the Maui County Planning Commission. Thank
you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Blackburn-Rodriguez. Committee Members, questions for
the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for your testimony.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify, we have Rob Parsons who will be testifying on Committee of
the Whole Item 2 and Committee of the Whole Item 15. And after that, the Chair will
recall Pat Sullivan for additional three minutes on Committee of the Whole Item 57.
Mr. Parsons?
MR. PARSONS: Good morning, Chair, Members. Nice to you. I'm Rob Parsons. I live in
Haiku. On Committee of the Whole No. 2 agenda item. Over the past several years, I've
made a practice of reviewing the names put forth by various administrations for serving
on boards and commissions. And I believe that the, the names put forth to you this year
are a very good group of individuals wishing to serve in the capacity of public service. I
do agree with the three previous testifiers however that there is one group of nominees
that stands out as kind of sore thumb and that is to the, the three appointments to the
Board of Water Supply. You know back in 2002, Meredith Ching of A&B was
appointed to the State Commission for Water Resource Management, and at that time
Attorney William Tam who actually wrote the Water Code for Hawaii when he was the
Deputy Attorney General said that this was an egregious error to have someone so closely
associated with major water decisions and a century of water usage to be part of the
decision-making body. And this was seven years ago, and I would have hoped that in
seven years time we would have learned that these kind of affiliations, not the
individuals, don't get me wrong. I'm sure that these three appointees are all individuals
of, of great, good character. But what I'm concerned with is the affiliations that each of
them has. And Mr. Hoxie has some 25 years with the plantation. The same is true with
Mr. Gerbig as a agricultural chemical specialist working with the plantation . .(change
tape, start 2A). . . though has been an outspoken proponent of Biotech and genetically
modified organisms. And I don't know what personal contract or affiliation he might
have with Monsanto, but I would ask because your Water Director was here today find
out how much potable water the seed corn operations are using in Maui County, not, not
brackish water but potable water from Iao Aquifer. And I believe it's a tremendous
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amount that seed corn operations are using. So, these are the kinds of affiliations that
would cloud unbiased decision-making on our very important Board of Water Supply.
So, I would ask that you request from the Administration another set of three names. On
agenda item COW-15, you're being asked by the Administration to look at a proposal, a
proposed resolution for disposition of the property at Kapuka'ulua and I'm glad we're
using the traditional Hawaiian name. I've spoken on this before. I think you know that I
put a good deal of time in studying this, the possibilities of this back in 2006. I really
believe that, that you're being limited by the Administration only giving you one option
and I would ask what, why was the public excluded from any kind of meaningful input
up until this point? I would ask that the Administration provide you a cost benefit
analysis not, not just for demolishing the building and for the permits necessary to be
acquired just to do that but also for other choices. And I think that the, the responsible
thing for the, for the Administration, for you Council Members to offer the community is
to have meaningful input to what happens here. You've, you've heard at the last couple
of meetings that Paia Youth and Cultural Center is interested in this, in acquiring this
building for their own purposes. And while they're a worthy organization, I would offer
that there are dozens of worthy organizations that if the building is left in its present site
could benefit from the shared usage of this and that could environmental groups, could be
cultural groups, it could be groups that, that are highlighting sustainability. There are
some obvious problems with this site. They've been cited numerous times. I think there
are things that could be mitigated. I wonder if there's any Park's master plan for the area
at this point. I would hope that, that what's being requested of you is part of a greater
plan but I haven't heard what that plan is for the six-plus acres that the County has now
acquired at a great expense of more than $11 million. And even more importantly than
that I would think would be a greater vision for the North Shore. The Sierra Club is
among groups that have for the past several years proposed what they're calling the Patsy
Mink North Shore Heritage Park. Proposals have gone to Representative Ed Case and
then to Representative Mazie Hirono to ask for a Federal study to put this area from
Sprecklesville to Paia's coastal area in permanent preservation status. And there's also a
proposal at the State Legislature to that effect this year. I think Shan Tsutsui was
introducing that. So, this beautiful building that was built as a private residence and has
since been acquired by the County could be a focal point of the North Shore Heritage
Park.
MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MR. PARSONS: I, I want to again say that I have numerous resources in my files, including a
PowerPoint of beautiful interior photos of the building which you wouldn't be able to see
even if you went down there now because the Administration has boarded it up. So, I
want to make that available to you. I'd be happy to meet with any of you. I also know
that you have a number of letters, I think more than a dozen letters on file in your binder
in support of using the building in some way, shape, or form where it stands now. Thank
you very much.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Parsons. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier? Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Rob, how far is the property and the building from the
youth center?
MR. PARSONS: I believe that the entrance to Baldwin Beach Park is a half-a-mile from the
entrance to Paia Town. So, it's in the neighborhood of half a mile or less.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The, the existing building to the youth center?
MR. PARSONS: Yes. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Any other questions for testifier, Members?
Seeing none, thank you, Mr. Parsons.
MR. PARSONS: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Recalling Pat Sullivan who will be testifying on Committee of the
Whole Item 57 for three minutes.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: Council Members, Pat Sullivan, 554 Wainee Street. My dad I think may
have been mistaken it was, I graduated in '72 so the flood had to be in '71. In any event,
I'd like the Council, I'd strongly recommend that the Council acquire the Peter Martin
land so that we can initiate the first stages of the flood prevention in Lahaina. So that
point is clear. Secondly, in the interim time, I would recommend that the retention basin
that exists which isn't really a retention basin that the County take serious and quick
action with regards to the three culverts that go across the highway into where my dad
was going to develop 20-lots. I think in talking to Charlie Jencks way back when, when I
was trying to get the subdivision approved he said as long as you don't increase the
flow-off of your water you'll be able to develop your property. Well, 20 years later we're
still trying to do that but what's happened is the cultural I mean the shelter, the homeless
shelter was developed up a little bit to the south. The parks which were also further
increased which is all a good thing but it has created additional flow into that retention
basin. And I do have video that actually shows this. And the problem that exists is that
in addition to the retention basin not being able to absorb any water, the work that was
done on Front Street for drainage all of that material was compacted into the retention
basin and it, it creates actually a pool there now instead of a retention basin that it was
intended for. The other issue is that the two, the three drain lines that go across into the
550, 550 Wainee Street property, they're only about a foot off of the retention basin floor,
and so the water, if it gets up a foot, it will start flowing across into the Wainee property.
So, you've got to do something with regards to making the retention basin back to a basin
but also doing something about those three culverts. I told the State Highway that I was
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in agreement with the four lanes, but you can't do the four lanes if you don't take care of
the retention basin. So, I'm going to object to the highway being widened if they don't
take care of that issue first. And I think that it would seem that the County would be
obligated to take care of the retention basin and then that would take care of our
immediate problem that we're faced with now. And it's, it's really pretty clear if that was
done at least in short term basis we, we would be okay. Wes Nohara, I don't know if he's
still here but he did tremendous work with -MS. HAMMAN: Three minutes.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: --West Maui Council's conservation up above and then the channel
easement by.. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Sullivan, I'll have to stop your testimony. Okay. Committee Members,
you have questions for the testifier? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Regarding the retention basin that's there
now, I know we've done poor maintenance on 'em. The depth of the basin today, is that
the depth of the basin when they first constructed the basin?
MR. P. SULLIVAN: I believe the basin was a little bit lower than it is now. The Front Street
drainage work that was done has added fill to it, and then when they did the Taste of
Lahaina I think more gravel may have been added. So what the problem is, is that those
three 24-inch lines are only a foot off of the basin bottom.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. That's my concern.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Committee Members, any other questions for
Mr. Sullivan? Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Sullivan, thank you for your
testimony. Are you, has the, that basin you refer to is it your knowledge that it's been
described as a retention basin?
MR. P. SULLIVAN: In my recollection from meeting with the County with regards to the
subdivision, my understanding is that it is a retention basin. I did have a map of it and
still do but I'm not absolutely certain, Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I only ask that question because I also have
understanding that, that basin was constructed for the swimming pool water to be flushed
and, and contained. So, I'm not sure if it's a retention basin in the description of being a
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flood retention basin or it was built to actually give the Lahaina Aquatic Center a place to
flush the water without the thing going any further than that. But I'll check with the
Department and see what they say but thank you for your.. .
MR. P. SULLIVAN: I think you may be accurate on that. And it just needs to be because of the
hardened nature of it and the fact that the other projects have built, been built south but
upstream it's created the real problem.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I agree with you but thank you for your testimony.
MR. P. SULLIVAN: All right. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Seeing no other questions for the testifier, thank
you, Mr. Sullivan. Members, we did have one individual who signed up after the start of
the meeting. The Chair would like to call up to testify on Committee of the
Whole Item 57, Yolanda Dizon. And, Ms. Dizon, you'll be given three minutes for
testimony.
MS. DIZON: Aloha, my name is Yolanda Dizon. Short and sweet. I like to go off of where
Mr. Cabanilla, you know, everything that he said, which makes sense. You don't need to
be a rocket scientist to figure that one out. Fourteen million dollars from the last meeting
is what I heard that was going to be from the Federal for this eminent domain for the
watershed. Would be good if we could use that money to update those reservoirs that's
already existing and the ditches rather, rather than working backwards from Launiupoko
to Puamana, and then you know all that it's, it's real basic, real easy. There is, the need is
now, the need is now for, for these flood waters. And, and, yes, because Pioneer Mill did
shut down there are no farms now, you know, it's not being used so the water of course
going run out. But everything that Mr. Cabanilla has said and he is speaking from
experience. He's grown up in that area. Our families are very close. We all grew up in
that area. So, if anybody would know it's the people of that area. So rather than
condemning those lands between Launiupoko and, and Puamana or Kauaula Stream use
that money to work on the existing, what do you call, reservoirs and ditches because like
I said the need is now. And, you know, Mr. Sullivan, yeah, your place always gets flood
out, flooded out but I mean it needs to be done now. Actually it needs to be done years
ago. So that's all I have to say. Farming, actually, Kamehameha Schools, you know,
they need to farm. They need to lease out those lands but then that's them. And then
have farms happening up there to help so that the water can be used rather than all
rushing down to Front Street. And that's it. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Dizon. Committee Members, questions for the
testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Hang on. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yolanda, are you part of the community that lives up in the
valley?
MS. DIZON: Yes, I am. Just below the valley, Kauaula.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. And you people had a concern in regards to the water
being moved farther down the, the road. You wanted the water to go through the stream
and end there?
MS. DIZON: You mean Kauaula Stream?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MS. DIZON: Actually, we wouldn't want any more runoff from Lahainaluna Road going into
the Kauaula Stream because then they're talking about digging the mouth of Kauaula
Stream and cementing it And that's going to hurt the, the resources in the ocean. We,
we gather our limu over there, our fish over there. And if we do that--look at what
happened to Kahoma. The oopu, you know, all, everything cannot go back up there
because it's all cemented. We don't want that for Kauaula Stream. There are sensitive
sites in Kauaula Stream, and we're very protective of that. But like I said, you don't need
to be a rocket scientist to figure out that there are other means to stop all the flooding, use
what's there. Spend, use that money for what's there that's, that's what I'm saying.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
MS. DIZON: You're welcome.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Any other questions? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Bison [sic!?
MS. DIZON: Dizon.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Oh, thank you for the correction. Yeah, you, you
mentioned a possibility that would mitigate flooding to be, to start to farm that area again
like when we had the sugar cane fields out there. I remember seeing after Amfac closed
down the sugar operations and the field was no longer cultivated that I used to see small
farms kind of just above the swimming pool area that were farming bananas and other
things. Are those farms in your knowledge expanding or they're pretty much on the same
area?
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MS. DIZON: Well, they're still in the same area. It would be nice if it did expand I mean
especially now with our economy so down. I mean what if Matson shuts down. How do
we feed our people?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. DIZON: What I'm saying is that farm, you know, we should be farming those lands up
there not building buildings but actually farm. So, if something does happen where we
can't get food from the outside I mean you know the people going be fed that's all I'm
saying.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I think you, you have a good and correct perspective on
that, because I think we always talk about sustainability and that's one way that we got to
be sustained ourselves is by growing more food.
MS. DIZON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for your testimony.
MS. DIZON: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Seeing no other request for questions of the
testifier, mahalo, Ms. Dizon, for your testimony. Anyone else interested in testifying,
otherwise the Chair will close public testimony? Seeing no one approaching the front,
with no objections, Members, the Chair will close public testimony for all of our three
items on our agenda today.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Very well. Ordered, Members.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

CHAIR MOLINA: Members, it is 20 minutes after the hour of 10:00. I believe we are ready for
just a short break and then we'll start right into with Committee of the Whole Item 57. A
special mahalo to our Lahaina residents for making the trip down here to share their
manao on our Committee Item 57 as well. Members, we are in recess until 10:30.
.(gavel). . .
RECESS:

10:21 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:34 a.m.
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CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel). . . Committee of the Whole meeting for March 5, 2009 is now
back in session. It's 10:34. Thank you for that break, Members.
ITEM NO. 57: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PROCEEDINGS IN EMINENT
DOMAIN FOR ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY INTERESTS
AT LAHAINA (LAHAINA WATERSHED FLOOD CONTROL PROJECT)
(C.C. No. 08-255)

CHAIR MOLINA: We'll go right into Committee of the Whole Item 57 which is a resolution
authorizing proceedings in eminent domain for acquisition of real property interests at
Lahaina. Again, Members, if you recall, we had a meeting on this back in February, and
I believe near the end of the last term there was another meeting which was chaired by
Council Chairman Mateo, back I believe in November or December. I'm not 100 percent
sure when, but I know it did occur during that time period. I trust you've read your
binders, Members, and you've also gotten some of your questions answered from the last
meeting. As you know, we have Director of Public Works Arakawa here as well, and
also he is accompanied by other resource personnel. We have Mr. Nohara, who's also
available for additional inquiries or information on this particular project. So, I'd like to
open up first with a few brief comments from the Director and, Members, I will turn
matters over to you for questions and answers. Mr. Arakawa?
MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. As you've noted, this item pertains to a proposed
resolution before you entitled, "AUTHORIZING PROCEEDINGS IN EMINENT
DOMAIN FOR ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY INTERESTS AT LAHAINA,
MAUI, HAWAII FOR THE LAHAINA WATERSHED FLOOD CONTROL
PROJECT." The purpose of the resolution is to authorize eminent domain proceedings in
the Second Circuit Court, State of Hawaii, for the Lahaina Watershed Flood Control
project which will provide enhanced flood protection for the residents of Lahaina. The
project is intended to divert flood waters from the West Maui Mountains around portions
of Lahainaluna Road, Luakini Street, and the Wainee area of Lahaina Town. The item
was first discussed by the Policy Committee on December 2, 2008 during the previous
Council term. The Committee of the Whole discussed this matter at its meeting of
February 12, 2009. There has been lengthy discussion at these previous Committee
meetings on this item so I'll try to be brief in my remarks. The first point I'd like to
make is that this project is desperately needed to alleviate massive flooding which occurs
in Lahaina Town during significant rainfall events. As you know, when there are
significant rains and subsequent flooding in Lahaina Town, many of the residents whose
homes and property have been damaged are here before the Council asking that the
Council alleviate the problem and you've seen some of the testifiers here today. This
project is a start of the solution to this long-standing issue. Second point is that this
project has been on the drawing boards for a long, long time. It has been discussed since
the 1980s. All the numerous alternatives have been discussed and evaluated. All of the
public hearings, permits, and agency reviews have been successfully completed. I want
to mention that while we acknowledge and respect the right of the Council to make
changes to the project, please understand that changes to the project at this point will
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result in significant delays in the projects implementation which could easily extend to
seven to ten years or more. On the other hand, we want to emphasize that once the
condemnation is settled this project is ready to start construction. If the condemnation is
authorized by the Council, I would note that we hope to request 2.2 million in funding for
the project which lapsed at the end of 2008. With the current economic slowdown, this
project would help in getting people back to work. The resolution entitled,
"AUTHORIZING PROCEEDINGS IN EMINENT DOMAIN FOR THE ACQUISITION
OF REAL PROPERTY INTERESTS AT LAHAINA, MAUI, HAWAII FOR LAHAINA
WATERSHED FLOOD PROJECT" has been prepared and this is in your binders and the
Committee's review and consideration of the proposed resolution is respectfully
requested. And with me this morning, I have also Cary Yamashita who's our
Engineering Division Chief and also our Federal partners with, on the project are here if
there are any questions. They are Dudley Kubo and Michael Hayama from the Natural
Resource Conservation Service.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Director. Before I turn matters over to the
Committee, the Chair would just like to share the direction that I would hope we go into
today. As you know this is a long-standing project. We've had residents from Lahaina
expressing their concern about the need for some form of action by the County and it's
been a number of years just to put it lightly. So, it is my hope today we can reach some
form of resolution today with a decision whether we support this or not, but I think the
people of West Maui are waiting and I think it's time that we consider some form of
action at least through this Committee. So, with that being said, Members, the Chair will
open the floor up for questions. We'll start with the West Maui representative,
Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. Milton, I, I did have an
opportunity last time to watch most of the presentation and the information and I did go
through the binder. I, I have just some clarifications that I need. The eminent domain
proceeding will give us title to the land or it will only provide us with an easement over
the land?
MR. ARAKAWA: We are asking for easements, actually, for over the land.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, the easements will only be for the portion that is going to
be covered by the drainage structures or this project or is it an area I guess beyond that
point, too?
MR. ARAKAWA: The easements are for the drainage areas that are needed for the project.
There are separate easements for the access road that's also needed, and there's also a
construction easement that's being requested. And that construction easement would
also, would just be needed during the period of construction and after construction is
done that would extinguish.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, but like for the construction easement is that
included in the purchase or in this monies that are being requested?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But the ultimate ownership will still remain with the
landowner?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, this is just like a rental.
MR. ARAKAWA: No. It's not the full bundle of rights as far as ownership, but the easement
provides us with all the, the rights that we need in order to do the drainage project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And for the construction road that would be there
because that's only during the construction phase, do you have any idea what the value of
that particular thing would be? I mean it seems kind of silly to pay for something.
MR. ARAKAWA: First of all, I just wanted to mention the access road is going to be permanent
but the construction easement is temporary.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But, but that still has a value to it. And the reason
I'm asking this, Milton, is because if this is the eminent domain proceeding and how
we're going to acquire when this goes forward then into the court system I just want to
have a better understanding of how we're coming up with these different values when we
don't actually own the property.
MR. ARAKAWA: The construction easements are valued at $77,935.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And how long will they be there, for the duration of the
project?
MR. ARAKAWA: Just during the period of construction. The construction for that section of
the, the project which is that, you know, that, the big.. .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just the lower portion?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, the lower portion in between the first outlet and the second outlet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And Phase I goes from I guess what percentage of
Phase I would this be to the entire project? Like if you were to look at I guess distance
wise, you know, is this 50 percent of the project for Phase I of the entire project or is it a
third of the entire project when it's eventually completed?
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MR. YAMASHITA: Councilmember Johnson, Phase I is approximately, well, well, what was
the question again? Was it.. .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If, if you're looking at the whole project -MR. YAMASHITA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --and you're splitting this up into phases.
MR. YAMASHITA: All right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: If you're looking at let's say the whole distance or the, you
know, because some of the phases may be smaller portions I just want to know what this
first phase is in relationship to the completion of the entire project. Is it 50 percent of the
distance or 50 percent of the project or?
MR. YAMASHITA: I don't have an exact percentage but it's not much of the total flood control
project. Phase I is basically the outer structure, the debris basin, and mass grading of the
section between the outlet and Hokiokio Road. But, yeah, as far as the percentage I
would say maybe 10 percent maybe.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and my reason for asking that is because with no
realistic assurance of the availability of any Federal funds beyond this first phase. Is that
correct there is no absolute guarantee that we're going to get funds beyond this first
phase?
MR. ARAKAWA: No. We, we have earmarks for money in the second phase.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, if you take the first phase then and the second
phase which go across Mr. Martin's property. I'm assuming both of those go across his
property. Would that be like 20 percent of the whole, the whole entire project from start
to finish or is the second phase much larger?
MR. ARAKAWA: No. The channel between the first and second outlet is fairly large basically
to handle, you know, the amount of flows that need to be accommodated. So, we
basically gave the Council a breakdown of, you know, the phasing in our response to you
dated December 22, 2008. And at that time, we mentioned that the whole project is
basically, it's a six phase project and the first four phases would extend between roughly
the second outlet and the first outlet. And Phases V would extend up from Kauaula
Stream up to about Wainee, Wainee Village. And Phase VI, the last phase is from
Wainee Village up to Lahainaluna Road.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and I just want to get a handle on this so that
people understand. The completion of the first phase is not going to prevent flooding of
the people who testified today?
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MR. ARAKAWA: The completion of the first phase by itself, that's correct it will not.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. ARAKAWA: But again, you know, if no initiation of the project is done then there will be
no commitment on the part of the Federal agencies for.. .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. No. And I understand that but I just don't want to
give a false sense of security or mislead the people in our community that they're going
to be protected because we're approving this. Second phase will that provide protection
for the people on Wainee Street and in the flooding area?
MR. ARAKAWA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, if I understand you third phase, fourth phase, fifth
phase, until it actually is ultimately completed that's when the protection would be
afforded?
MR. ARAKAWA: It would be afforded incrementally as you move more mauka.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But full protection would not be until the entire
project is completed?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And beyond the first two phases we're looking at no
commitment then of any money from the Federal government that we could actually
guarantee we are going to get?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, we cannot guarantee at this point that there's, they'll be a commitment
on the part of the Federal government for funding. But our experience has been basically
is that if the Federal government makes commitment to the . . . (change tape, start 2B).. .
only commit to try to get funding for subsequent phases 'cause it doesn't make sense to
do just a portion of a project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, and I understand that. Worse case scenario if we get
money for Phase I and Phase II the remaining phases of the project since this is six
phases, if the County of Maui and the taxpayers have to pick up the tab what would your
guesstimate be as to the total cost to complete the project?
MR. ARAKAWA: If the Federal government does not?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah or just say, you know, just say from Phase, Phase III
forward what are we looking at dollar-wise?
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MR. ARAKAWA: The total cost is roughly about . . . (pause).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Department, do you need a few minutes to calculate? Then we can go to
another question while you come up with the numbers or are you prepared to -MR. ARAKAWA: No, no.
CHAIR MOLINA: --give numbers?
MR. ARAKAWA: Actually, it's, it's in the, the response that we provided to the Council
December 22, 2008. We have a commitment of a little over $9 million right now in
Federal funding. The total cost of the project is going to be about $29 million. So, if
there's no Federal commitment after the first two phases then, you know, we're looking
at $20 million that would needed to be picked up by the County.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I, I just want people to be aware of what we're
looking at and there's no assurance either, Mr. Arakawa, is there, that these prices will
hold firm, because that's how we've been delayed all along with continuing escalation of
costs for construction. Is that correct?
MR. ARAKAWA: In the past, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Yeah. And, and, Chair Molina, I just wanted to let
the people know who came be aware that that money was not refused by the County, but
due to unfortunate set of circumstances not the least of which was the issue with the land,
the issue with the outlet, other factors that were totally not within our control and
certainly not within the Department's cost overruns was one of the big things.
Mr. Nohara and Mr. Nobriga kept going to Washington to get these monies. It just did
not work out. And then the other reason for the delay was that the outlet originally was
going to come through Puamana, but it did not go through Puamana because the people
there objected and that's why you had that second design.
So, I just want the public to understand we're not just settling, sitting here twiddling our
thumbs and the Department is not just, you know, blowing this money off. We're trying
but sometimes getting there is the difficult part. But thank you. And thank you,
Department, for answering my questions.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Thank you for that clarification or reminder, Member Johnson,
that, yeah, the County has not been sitting on it, it's just that we've had to deal with some
issues that have sidetracked the proposed project. Just a quick follow-up to
Member Johnson's question before I turn matters over to the rest of the Committee. The
timetable with the total six phases for this project, if you could refresh our memories,
Mr. Director?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair, in our December response--of course, the timetable for the
completion of the project is, again, dependent on funding and it's also dependent on of
course Federal and County funding. But assuming we can get started here, then we're
looking at a period of about 3.75 years to complete the-CHAIR MOLINA: So . . . (inaudible). . . estimate it close to four years for the total completion
of the project if -MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: --funding goes accordingly. Okay. Committee Members, additional
questions for the Department? Member Medeiros, followed by Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Director Arakawa, the, what is the
appraised cost of the eminent domain currently for the easements?
MR. ARAKAWA: There are drainage easements totaling 20.72 acres and the appraised
fair-market value is $2,063,300; access easements of 2.311 acres with a fair-market value
of $219,400, and construction easements of 9.919 acres with a fair-market value of
$77,935. So the total amount of just compensation is $2,360,635.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Director. And then because we're identifying
or describing part of the drainage as first outlet and second outlet which the viewing
public or people in the gallery have no idea where that is. The first outlet is the existing
Puamana drainage?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And the second outlet is an area kind of halfway between
Puamana and Launiupoko Park?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, will this system tie into the existing concrete box
culvert that now exists under H'piilani Highway, Honoapiilani Highway?
MR. ARAKAWA: There is the debris basin just mauka of the highway and the flows will
actually be decreased slightly through the Puamana channel and the remaining flows will
go through the second, go to the second outlet.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And at the second outlet, the Launiupoko outlet, will
there be any hardening of the coastal area, the beach area from the ocean to the
high-water or vegetation mark?
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MR. ARAKAWA: From the Puamana area, from Kauaula Stream area, the channel will be
entirely grass-lined. And it's fairly flat which allows for maximum of percolation to be,
to be allowed. There will be a culvert under Honoapiilani Highway to reach the ocean.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But as far as the coastal area which is the rocks and, and the
beach area which would be from the ocean to the high-water level or vegetation area,
would that be hardening?
MR. ARAKAWA: It's just basically a culvert with, you know, the outlet headwall.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. So, it's not a concrete apron extended down into
the ocean?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, we won't go into the ocean. No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And you may have asked, answered this question to
Member Johnson but I didn't remember it. How long would the first phase take as it's
currently designed?
MR. ARAKAWA: The estimated construction time is about nine months.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: If I could just interject, Mr. Director and Mr. Medeiros? Members, again, if
you looked at your December 22, 2008 letter from the Director, it gives a very detailed
breakdown of the cost of the project, as well as the timetables for what, how long each
phase will take. Continue, Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for pointing that out.
Yeah. I'm, I'm just trying to determine the difference between the last time we met on
this which the notes I'm looking at on the, the design of the project map that we received.
And, and you did say the total cost of the project providing we receive all the funds that
we are pursuing will be about 20 million. Is that correct?
MR. ARAKAWA: No. The, the total cost of the project is, all six phases, would be
approximately $29 million. We have a commitment of about 9 million right now from
the Federal government. We are hoping to receive Federal participation, additional
Federal participation in the future for future phases. So, we're hoping to get about a total
of 17.3 million from the Federal government.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. You know there was a testifier and
maybe more than one that referred to that basin next to the Lahaina Aquatic Center as a
retention basin. Can you verify to me that that's the design of that basin or is indeed that
basin was built so that it would allow the Aquatic Center to flush their pools periodically?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Medeiros, our understanding of that basin was that that
basin was built in order to accommodate additional runoff that's being caused by the
development of the Aquatic Center, not so much for the flushing of the pool but just for,
to take care of drainage purposes for the Center itself. It wasn't intended to alleviate
regional drainage problems.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, I, I think the testifier alluded to the basin floor being
hardening, hardened over the years and, you know, having worked out there some
Administrations did require Public Works to lay down aggregates and roll it as they
moved the Taste of Lahaina festival into that basin. And so, because of that action
certainly there's less percolation going on there. And I don't know is it in the plans even
though I know that basin I think belongs to the Parks Department and not Public Works
even though we assisted them from time to time. Do you know of any plans to because
the Taste of Lahaina is no longer in that basin that they're going to excavate what was put
in to increase the percolation again?
MR. ARAKAWA: I'm not aware of plans to do anything to the basin. But as you know
whatever is done needs to be done fairly carefully because the water table is -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. ARAKAWA: --fairly close under the existing service [sic], surface.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I agree with that. My last question, Mr. Chair, if I
may because the people along Wainee that have been impacted by the recent floods was
there any consideration to put a drainage system between the highway and the row of
houses on Wainee Street that could take the water to Malu-ulu-olele Park ditch drainage
to the ocean or other existing drainages so it would give them a more immediate relief?
Because there is that that open area between the row of homes on Wainee Street and the
highway and, you know, that's where the water ends up, because the State has a culvert
under that road that takes all the water to that open area right next to the homes. So, was
there any consideration to put immediate drainage measures above the homes to take that
water laterally to discharge them either through Shaw, Shaw Street, Prison Street or the
existing Malu-ulu-olele Park ditch?
MR. YAMASHITA: Councilmember Medeiros, that location there was part of, analyzed as part
of the Lahaina Town drainage master plan; however, I don't know the details offhand
how that section was going to be addressed. But I'm sure that some kind of mitigative
solution would have been incorporated with the Lahaina Town drainage master plan.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and, you know, my feelings about that is that it's
estimated to, that this project will take about four years, maybe three and three-quarter to
four years, and the part that would provide relief and protection to the area now being
impacted is the last part of the project because we're starting at the other end and working
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towards Lahainaluna Road. So, I was just wondering if the Administration had looked
into more immediate drainage just above that area.
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Medeiros, that's a very difficult question to answer because
while we can certainly sympathize with the residents wanting to have action right away.
In order to take care of the water from 100-year flood we were talking about as, as we
mentioned last time it's just a tremendous amount of water that needs to be
accommodated. And so, what has been done in the interim has been really due to the
efforts of the West Maui Soil and Water Conservation District through the efforts of
Mr. Nobriga and Mr. Nohara where they've actually done that interim diversion. That
has helped tremendously. But as far as anything else that can be done even with, within
the town itself, no matter what the County can do it's still will be insufficient to handle
major floods.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Director, thank you for your responses, and Mr. Yamashita.
Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I just want to thank the Department for those responses.
I had questions in regards to, you know, the canal that traverse from H'piilani towards the
ocean. So, Chairman, just one question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: On your first, first phase design, I know there are some
issues in regards to the, the water that probably going to end up at the new location Basin
No. 2. Can the design accommodate like, say, the greater flow of the water, you know,
drain into Kauaula Stream?
MR. ARAKAWA: I'm not sure I understand your question. You're asking whether or not
the.. .
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, when you complete your design the first debris
basin of first, Phase I, when the whole thing is finished that the greater flow that's
coming down the mountain rather than going into the second outlet, the greater flow
would end up in the existing Puamana location.
MR. ARAKAWA: Actually, the design right now has a number of sediment basins incorporated
within it, and it actually calls for a slight reduction in the amount of flows that would exit
from the, the Puamana outlet. And so, the, all the remaining flows basically would be
diverted to the second outlet. That's the current design right now.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: That's the current design?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, my, my only concern is that if, you know, more
water flowing into the second outlet, you know, what damages could be caused on the
fish life at that location.
MR. ARAKAWA: That was all discussed as part of the EIS process, and again the design
included a number of grass-lined channels to allow for maximum percolation where
possible and sediment, various sediment basins, and debris basins were planned
throughout various courses of the project to allow for again, you know, trying to take out
the sediment before it reaches the ocean. And the fact that we have that second outlet is
basically another three-fifth of a mile that allows these grass-lined channels, it allows this
opportunity for additional percolation. So, we've tried to minimize the amount of
sediment and silt that's going into the ocean, you know, to the greatest extent possible.
Now, again, if, if we're now wanting to even eliminate the second outlet or redirect flows
again then the impacts upon the near shore environment now need, need to be
recalculated. And our thought is we just wanted to maximize the amount of silt and
sediment, retain it on the, on the land rather than having it flushed out into the ocean.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. One last question in regards to the
maintenance of the Phase I once it's completed. How will the maintenance be done in
regards to, you know, weeds and whatever debris that goes into that -MR. ARAKAWA: It will be -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --area?
MR. ARAKAWA: --it will be Public Works that will be maintaining that. And you might recall
from Budget a few years ago, we did ask for additional bodies, which the Council did
grant. So, we already have those, those people onboard available to do that, that
maintenance.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, any other questions before the Chair
offers a recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Johnson? And, Members, just to remind you, we do have the
nominees that are waiting for our next item, so if we can just get direct to the questions
and then ... (inaudible).. .
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm just going to make this real quick, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Go ahead, Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... (laughter). . . Urn. . .is the highway widening project that
the State is doing going to impact any part along the corridor or interfere in any way with
your project?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, it won't.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Labor or anything else? Because I know there's
. (laughter). . . you know, there's very few certain, you know, contractors that, you
know, I think as far as paving goes there's only one company. So, you know, all right. If
there's any coastal erosion being accelerated along the area I guess to the north where the
outfall is going to be now near guardrails--if there's coastal erosion or if there's an
accelerated rate 'cause we got a presentation the other day showing that we have all this
new data and coastal erosion, sea level rise are creating rapid problems, who's going to
handle that one? . .(laughter). . . Are, is the County responsible if coastal erosion
damages properties or is the. . .Federal because they're approving this or what?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's a bit of a tricky question, Councilmember Johnson. I guess the, if
you're asking about whether or not, you know, coastal erosion may be an issue, I guess
the other side of the coin I would argue that it, it would be less of an issue if we allow all
of the, the rocks and silt and sediment to be flushed into the ocean. And I would argue
that that's a. . .more undesirable option. Basically, if we can retain all of the greater
amount of silt and sediment on, on the land, it allows for regeneration of the reefs, it
allows for, you know, the marine environment, you know, to come back. So, I think it's
just overall a more healthy situation to try to retain the silt and sediment on the, on the
land rather than, you know, flushing it out into the ocean.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. You know and I know we really shouldn't probably
be even asking that question, but I, I just at least want it on the record so that we're aware
that this might be a possibility. And the final question is if we experience problems that
have been similar to the ones we're already experienced, is there a plan B? Because if, if
like on the Keawe Street project and some other things where we find iwi--burials
because that's a very sensitive archaeological area--during the construction phase, what is
our plan B or do we have one?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, we went through all of the archaeological issues in the EIS process.
You know the EIS is a comprehensive document. But like, again if there are
archaeological issues, we, there was a study done and as in any archaeological study it, it
only does sampling, so you never quite know what you're going to be running into during
construction. If that occurs, we'll have to go the same route as the State DOT did, you
know, on the, the bypass. You know, we'll have to see what other options available as
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far as either relocating burials or, or perhaps realigning our project. And I guess we'll
have to. . .deal with that issue if it, if it comes up during, during the-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and-MR. ARAKAWA: --construction phase.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and my only reason in suggesting that is that if we run
into a similar situation, I really want to have so that--time is of the essence, 'cause you
have not yet designed that upper phase--have two alternatives that have equal support.
Because if you have two and they're fully approved, if one doesn't work, you have your
plan B and we don't have to have these continual delays. So that . . . (laughter). . . is my
advice. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: When exact, when do you expect to start?
MR. YAMASHITA: . . . We're ready to go. We're just waiting for the land to be acquired.
And the, yeah, the contractor Kiewit Pacific is on hold right now, so at any moment.
They'll need some time to prep and to, to mobilize; however, I think maybe a couple of
months at the most.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Members, any final questions? If
not, the Chair is going to offer a recommendation. Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. You know only
because some of the, the testimony brought in today has to deal with mitigating other
issues on a more immediate basis for the people that are directly below in the Wainee
area. And a suggestion was brought to, to the table about looking at agriculture as one of
the mitigating kinds of situations that might help to alleviate some of that, that flow.
Considering the fact that you're not going to look at this Wainee area in the immediate
but that's in your later phases, is there any way to mitigate some of those kinds of issues
that are more directly going to impact perhaps those families that are on Wainee right
now?
MR. ARAKAWA: The, the only answer I can give you is that there was that West Maui, West
Maui Soil and Conservation District interim diversion that, that's already there and, and
already provides some, some level of protection. But as far as agriculture on the upland
properties, of course, you know, those aren't owned by the County and those are under
private ownership. As far as the ditch system that Pioneer Mill used to maintain, some of
those ditches are, I know the ditches at least below Lahainaluna School, you know, are
filled with stilt [sic] , with silt and I'm not sure about the other portions of the ditch
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systems. But again, you know, it's not under County control so, you know, if, if we want
to get involved with that it might be quite, quite costly actually.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. When you're looking at the later phases,
are you now going to be looking at the acquisition of easements through those private
lands?
MR. ARAKAWA: Either, probably, probably easements. I'm not sure if it's either going to be
easements or we want to own in fee but it's basically two other, two other landowners
that we're talking with, and we've already started talking with them.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And the two landowners are?
MR. ARAKAWA: Kaanapali Development Company and the other is Kamehameha Schools.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. The, Mr. Cabanilla brought up the fact
that there exists some of the infrastructure that have been in place during the plantation
that might serve to be of, of some help, and I think one of them is the ditch system that
might be considered. So, you know, just in trying to understand that we're going to at
some future point have to either take by eminent domain or strike an agreement with the
landowner. Wouldn't it be then proactive on our part now to consider that those are the
end phases but in terms of putting them in action alongside with finishing the first phase
to help mitigate some of the issues that might arise between now and the next three or
four years? That wouldn't it be prudent on our part to consider looking at some of them
as solutions while we're looking at doing the first phase?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Kaho`ohalahala, we, we can take a look at that. Probably
our best bet, we, we can work with the West Maui Soil and Water Conservation District
and see what can be done as far as those kind of interim measures in addition to what
they've already done.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Because the, the funding that you're
talking about that they're still pending, you know, you're still looking for $17 million in
the, the later phases, that's not the total cost, right? That's just going to be the Federal's
share of what we anticipate?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes. We're hoping to get a total of $17.3 million from the Federal
government.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And then what would be our proposed
contribution?
MR. ARAKAWA: Our total County match would be around $11.8 million.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: So, we would be putting 12 million to, to match
the 17 million?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: In our, our proposed contribution then is there a
way to look at moving some of that cost upfront to try and mitigate some of these issues
today?
MR. ARAKAWA: Of course these monies are all unappropriated at this point. So, I think we
can try and see what can be done in the interim with the West Maui Soil and
Conservation District, I mean I.. .
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: We're coming to a budget process, so are, are
any of those considerations for the, the Council to be looking at for next fiscal year?
MR. ARAKAWA: I know we are asking for the, in the Fiscal Year '10 we would be asking for
the $2.2 million in construction money, which actually lapsed at the end of calendar year
2008.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: And that would be construction monies for this
phase?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yeah. For this, this project, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. So, no monies are being anticipated right
now that might move some of that front or that backend of the.. .
MR. ARAKAWA: Not at this point. But like I said we can try and explore what, what can be
done in the interim with, you're talking about more soil conservation type measures
perhaps using the existing ditch system, more of the traditional type, using the traditional
systems already in place.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: I mean, I think I appreciate the fact that the
Water Conservation has mitigated some of that, but I think if we're going to lend some
support we need to probably consider looking at moving beyond just the, the current, you
know, mitigation plan that's in place. And then consider the idea of what farming or
agriculture might lend to your mitigation plan and then move ahead on that so that the
reality is that as Member Johnson said this phase is not going to even take care of
anything that's currently been raised in testimony by those people of Wainee. So, to
really demonstrate that we are thinking about their concerns as well we cannot just look
at the, the first phase but perhaps along with the first phase consider what we might do
from Public Works . . . (change tape, start 3A). . . some of those and we have suggestions
by people who have experience looking at those systems that served as, as drainage
systems perhaps in the plantation's past as well as those who are suggesting perhaps that
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agriculture be another part of the mitigation. So, maybe we need to look at all of them at
the same time so we can at least say to the communities we are making an effort to get to
the completion of this total six phase project but, in the meantime, we're willing to move
upfront some of those other mitigating kinds of measures. So, I would hope that in the,
the Budget process then, Chair, that these are going to be some of the considerations that
your Department will be willing to come forward with as we discuss those.
MR. ARAKAWA: We can take a look at that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Members, at this time, the
Chair is going to offer a recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation?
CHAIR MOLINA: The Chair would recommend the motion to support a resolution which
authorizes the proceedings in eminent domain for the acquisition of real property interests
at Lahaina, Maui, Hawaii for the Lahaina Watershed Flood Control Project.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Mateo. The
matter is on the floor for discussion, Members, or comments. Member Victorino, as the
maker of the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll yield to my colleagues.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members? Okay. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I think I made previous comments. I still feel the same.
My personal feeling is this is a lousy project because it doesn't do much and what we're
looking at today is just the land acquisition to begin it. But I'm not here to express my
personal opinions. I'm here to do what my constituents expect which is some type of
action on this particular measure. I hope I'm wrong. I hope we don't have flooding, you
know, between now and the time that this project ultimately gets constructed. But I
really do not have a lot of faith right now in the Federal government because of the huge
debt load that we're looking at. And as Mr. Arakawa said well it would be kind of silly
to start a project and not complete it. But there are many projects that we have started
that we have not completed. So, you know, it's with the best of intentions that all the
people that participated in the Soil and Water Conservation group, your participation,
Department, other community members, all the lobbying in Washington, and the hope of
our Federal Legislators to get these earmarks. It's always been well intended but I just
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want to reiterate be careful what you ask for because it may not be what you think it's
going to be. I have serious misgivings about this. I hope I'm totally wrong. I, I will
support it against my gut feeling. I don't believe it's, it's going to turn out well but I
hope in this situation I am wrong. But because I will not be on this Council when future
allocations and future requests for money come forward, I just hope for the best and you
have my support but my serious misgivings. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Committee Members? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman. I'm going to support this
recommendation. And, you know, the Department had worked hard in regards to
creating a master drainage plan for West Maui. When I was chairman for Public Works,
you know, I worked with them in regards to master drainage plan not only for West Maui
but for Central, Kihei, and the like. It costs money. And, you know, I'm really grateful
for the work that the West Maui Soil and Conservation had done especially Mr. Nobriga
as well as Mr. Nohara in trying, in getting this funding so that we, at least we can start,
you know, part of the master drainage plan for Lahaina get it started. It's, it's the first.
In regards to protection while this thing is being constructed. You know the West Maui
Soil and Conservation under leadership with Wes Nohara continue to provide interim
diversion. You know we have major companies that help out in regards to maintaining
the berm at that location. So, Chairman, I'm going to be supporting your
recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Mr. Pontanilla. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair Molina. I, too, will be supporting
this and the reason I'm going to is because I've heard all the discussion and I'm aware of
the concerns and that they don't address immediate concerns or we're not sure about the
outcome. But every epic journey starts with that first step and I think we need to get
going.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Any other comments? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Just a quick comment and I don't
know if this was already asked during my short absence but if the Director could tell me
if we have initiated any plans to procure stimulus package funding? Because this project
was developed prior to the Federal and State stimulus packages being offered and being
that this is shovel ready have we applied for any of the funds in order to lessen the cost to
the County and the taxpayers?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Director?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Medeiros, at this point, we have the Federal appropriation of
$3 million, which had been set aside for this project. We can look into the economic
stimulus as far as possibilities for future phases but as far as right now that money was
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appropriated a while back and, you know, that, that's what's intended for this project.
But you're right economic stimulus may provide some opportunity in, you know, for
future phases and we can, we can explore that with NRCS.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I think that would be a good initiative because
President Obama has stated that the stimulus package, the focus is on infrastructure and
this indeed is infrastructure. And so I think we would qualify quite easily for any Federal
funding under the stimulus package or even the State stimulus package. But thank you,
Department, for checking on that. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Mr. Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. I'm going to be voting with
reservations. And my reservations is simply that I would like to see that during the
Budget process that the Public Works Department is going to seriously come forward
with some other mitigating measures that might be assisting the communities of Wainee
immediately. And I'm talking for the, the 2010 Fiscal Year. And so that would be my,
my reservations and I'm asking that, that you seriously put to action some of the
statements made today. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Okay, seeing no other comments--oh,
Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I'll be supporting the motion on the
floor. I think it would be a travesty for us to wait another seven to ten years. So, I, I
think the more prudent thing to do at this point is to support the measure. I'm hopeful
that the Department will adhere or had, had heard some of the recommendations
especially those made by Member Kaho`ohalahala in terms of mitigation. Those are
viable for this community and could perhaps address some of the more pressing and the
more immediate issues in terms of flooding. For us to get to this point for me is, is
satisfying. This appeared before my Committee last term and at that point it clearly
demonstrated the urgency of us starting to move with this project. So, at this point,
Mr. Chairman, I, I gladly support your, your recommendation.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank, thank you, Chairman Mateo. All right. Members, the Chair would
like to just offer some parting comments on this. You know many of us, well, I'll speak
for myself, we're not engineering experts so to speak and we have to put our faith in to
the people who are the so-called experts. That's what they were hired for. So the onus is
on the Department and I can understand the reservations expressed by some of the folks
but on the other hand, too, we, first and foremost, we must look out for the needs of the
citizens on the west side as well. I think they've been waiting patiently for the Council to
take some form of action on this. So, we have to start someplace. So, with that being
said, Members, the Chair will call for the vote. All those in favor--and by the way,
Members, the motion includes the filing of the communication as well. All those in
favor, signify by saying "aye".
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it nine "ayes" with
zero "noes". The measures passes, will be passed on for first reading to the full Council.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Johnson, Kaho`ohalahala, Medeiros,
Nishiki,
Pontanilla, Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo,
and
Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending ADOPTION of resolution and FILING of
communication.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, the Chair is going to call for a quick two-minute break to confer
with Staff on a matter. Meeting in recess till 11:30. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

11:28 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:32 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA:
.. . (gavel). . .
The Committee of the Whole meeting for
Thursday, March 5, 2009 is now back in session. Thank you very much for that break,
Members.
ITEM NO. 2(2): NOMINATIONS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS
(VARIOUS) (C.C. No. 09-15)

CHAIR MOLINA: We're now on Committee of the Whole Item 2 related to nominations to
boards, committees, and commissions. And we have from the Administration,
Marian Feenstra to give comments on the nominees. But before I turn matters over to
Ms. Feenstra, the, just to remind the Members that the nominees to boards, committees,
and commissions requires Council approval or disapproval within 60 days for terms
expiring on March 31, 2014 unless otherwise indicated. And we are under a clock so to
speak, Members, so we have basically until March 31 st of this year to consider these
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nominations otherwise it will be deemed approved if matters go beyond that date. So,
with that said, Ms. Feenstra.
MS. FEENSTRA: Aloha, Chair Molina, and Council Members, and members of the audience.
The Mayor would like to give her thanks to all of those who served on boards and
commissions whose terms will be expiring at the end of this month. She would also like
to thank all the persons who have applied for numerous boards and commissions. There
were more than 300 applications for the vacancies and all of those are to be commended
for coming forward to volunteer to the County. Because of the various requirements not
all applicants qualified such as a veterinarian for Animal Control Board, a landscape
architect for the Urban Design Review Board, or a specific geographic reason [sic],
region being represented. Due consideration is given to geographically balance the
boards. I also want to thank those that have been requested by Council for interview
today. I know it's been a long morning and, you know, this is an important process that
we all go through. So, thank you very much for your patience. And I'd also like to just
make note Mr. Bruce Yamashita has requested to be removed as the Molokai Planning
Commission nominee due to an off-island job offer. We are waiting for his formal letter
and will forward that letter to Council Chair as soon as we receive it but I wanted you to
have that heads up.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. FEENSTRA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for your opening comments. All right. Members, let's get right
into business here. Well, let me ask--Staff, would it be appropriate for us, because of
what Ms. Feenstra said with regards to Mr. Yamashita, that we could entertain a motion
at this point to disapprove Mr. Yamashita from the Molokai Planning Commission
because of his resignation at this point in time or should we look at a separation? Staff,
any comment?
MS. HAMMAN: Mr. Chair, I think that you could do it either way.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, then any objection, the Chair would entertain a motion to
disapprove Bruce Yamashita for consideration to the Molokai Planning.. .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, move to disqualify Mr. Bruce Yamashita.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Council Chair Mateo, seconded by
Member Victorino. Any discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by saying
"aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. Thank you. Mr. Yamashita has been removed
from consideration for the Molokai Planning Commission.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Johnson, Kaho`ohalahala, Medeiros,
and
Vice-Chair Mateo,
Victorino,
Nishiki,
Pontanilla,
Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending DISAPPROVAL of the nomination of
Bruce Yamashita to the Molokai Planning Commission.

CHAIR MOLINA: Members, for the record, we have three Council Members that did request
the following nominees to appear before us today for questions and answers. For the
Board of Code and [sic] Appeals: Members Baisa, Victorino, and Mr. Nishiki if I'm
correct. And also from the Board of Water Supply, the nominations, Mr. Donald Gerbig,
John Hoxie Jr., and Jeffrey Rebugio--that request was made by the three members. And
my understanding is Mr. Rebugio is unable to be here. Am I correct, Staff?
MS. HAMMAN: Yes, that's correct. He had an off-island commitment.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. And for the nomination to the Maui Planning Commission,
Warren Shibuya was requested to be here by those members as well. So, Members, they
are here. At this point in time, the Chair would like to make a motion for approval for the
other nominees and to consider the separation of the nominations for the Board of Code
and [sic] Appeals, Board of Water Supply, and Maui Planning Commission. Is there any
other considerations for request for separation by the Members for the other nominees for
the various boards and commissions? Okay. Seeing none, then at this point the Chair
will recommend approval of the nominations of all the other nominees who have applied
for the various boards and commissions.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Second.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Johnson, seconded by Member Mateo.
Discussion? So, again, Members, we are not including the vote for the nominees for the
Board of Code and [sic] Appeals, the nominees for the Board of Water Supply, and the
nominee for the Maui Planning Commission in this current motion that's on the floor.
That's all clear to everyone? Okay. Seeing no further discussion, all those in favor,
signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Okay. The Chair will mark it 9-0. The nominations to
the other various board and commissions have been approved.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Johnson, ICaho`ohalahala, Medeiros,
and
Vice-Chair Mateo,
Victorino,
Pontanilla,
Nishiki,
Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of all nominations (excluding
nominations to the Board of Code Appeals, Maui Planning
Commission, and Board of Water Supply).

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Let us now start first with our interview process. We'll start first
with Mr. Paul Laub if he's still available here. There he is. Mr. Laub, if you'd like to
come to the, actually, you maybe might get a little bit more comfortable if you'd like to
come up here and sit. For the record, Staff, we did have the three Members; were there
any other Members that requested Mr. Laub's presence to our proceedings here today?
Paul, you can grab the seat right here in front.
MR. LAUB: . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR MOLINA: I tell you what, Mr. Laub, you know what, you can go ahead and have, if
you don't mind standing before the Committee? We try to make our nominees somewhat
comfortable, but I guess--we used to have a chair there I know that.
MR. LAUB: I can hide better over here.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Staff, so anyway getting back to my question earlier. We, were there any
other Council Members that requested Mr. Laub's presence? I just want to note it for the
record--we had Members Baisa, Victorino and Mr. Nishiki--you also requested Mr. Laub,
am I correct?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes. Okay. Any others? There were no others?
MS. HAMMAN: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
MS. HAMMAN: Those were the only three.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Very good. What the Chair will do, we'll--being that we had the
three Members that made the request, I will recognize them first to ask the questions of
Mr. Laub and we'll do it first starting with Member Baisa, followed by Member Nishiki
and Member Victorino. Member Baisa, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Laub, for
coming today.
MR. LAUB: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: And thank you for volunteering.
MR. LAUB: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Tell me what do you see as what you'll be able to bring to the
Board of Code and [sic] Appeals?
MR. LAUB: Fairness. I think fairness is the, my first watch word.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: I see. And of course the, the important question is how does this
fit into your schedule? Do you have time?
MR. LAUB: I should have a lot of time.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Are you aware of what the meeting schedule is?
MR. LAUB: Well, I understand, from my understanding, there hasn't been a meeting since
October and there were only three meetings in the previous year. So, it seems like I'm
going to have a lot of time.
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COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Sounds to me like that we need to get going here. Tell me, A,
can you give us a little bit of information about your previous volunteer experience.
MR. LAUB: Well, I was on the Boy Scout Council in Monterey County in California. I was a
founder of the Monterey County Sheriff Advisory Council which is still in existence and
that was quite a few years ago. I was a pilot and deputy sheriff and I, I volunteered for
that and took the courses to become a deputy sheriff in Monterey and became a
commander of the Monterey County Sheriff Aero Squadron. There have been numerous
other things I organized a bicycle program for the needy in Monterey County which
gave away literally thousands of bicycles to needy people.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Are, are you the Paul Laub that is organizing a Veterans Day, or
I mean, a commemoration of our war dead event?
MR. LAUB: Yes. I'm a member of the West Maui Veterans Club and the Maui County
Veterans Council. And the Mayor's office and the Council both asked me to organize
that as well as the, there will be a memorial service in May for the West Maui veterans
that I'll, that I'm organizing. And so, I am very active in that.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much.
MR. LAUB: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Appreciate you being here.
MR. LAUB: And, and thank you for asking about the ceremony which is coming up this 13 th at
12:30 at the War Memorial and I, I wish to, and the Veterans Council wishes to invite
you all to that ceremony.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much.
MR. LAUB: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Paul, did you, do you know anything about the
Board of Code and [sic] Appeals?
MR. LAUB: Not much. No, I don't. I was told that.. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Did.. .
MR. LAUB: I'm sorry, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Go ahead.
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MR. LAUB: I was told that it had to do with differences in usage of code materials and whether
that was allowed or not.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, when you made an application I guess the question is did
you apply for the Board of Code and [sic] Appeals?
MR. LAUB: It was one of the three that I picked out. I picked out also the Police Commission
and the, and the Variances Committees and was chosen for this Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, and, Paul, again, thank you for being
here and taking time out of your busy schedule. My, you know, most of my questions
have been answered but the question I, you know, the additional question I'd like to ask
you is of, of the three that you mentioned which one was your preference as far as that is
concerned?
MR. LAUB: Well, my most, most experience is in police work. And so, since I spent 11 years
doing that I think that perhaps the Police Commission would have been my number one
choice.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And you feel that in this one not only you can bring
fairness but what other background could you bring to the Board of Code and [sic/
Appeals? Well what, what else other than your fairness, what else would you bring?
MR. LAUB: Well, I like to, I like to look at what the rules and regulations are and live by those
rules and regulations and try to be pono.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. LAUB: And that, that's my consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Committee Members, any other questions for
Mr. Laub before the Chair makes the recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Member Johnson, you had a quick question?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I just, I want to thank you, Paul, for coming today
and sitting through the earlier part. I got an e-mail and the person, I guess, because your
name was published in the paper. It was anonymous so I couldn't tell who sent it but
they said that they had been aware that you had been fined or that you were running an
illegal operation and they made these kinds of statements. So, they wrote to me and said
how can someone who's been I guess shut down or is doing something illegal be running
for the Board of Code and [sic] Appeals. So, can you answer them because.. .
MR. LAUB: Certainly. I was operating, and I think I mentioned at your Committee a bicycle
project at my home where we both gave away for free to anybody who was sent by any
church or social organization, a bicycle. To pay for those bicycles we sold, we recycled,
took old bicycles, recycled them, and made them available very inexpensively. We were
informed that was in violation of the, being in the residential area, and we were asked to
close down. And we did close down and then we, we had some garage sales on Sunday
and we were informed that wasn't pono either because the garage sales were supposed to,
specifically supposed to be household items and that bicycles were not. And therefore
we were asked a second time as clarified to close down which we did close down. And
we're now open at, in a B-2 zone at 233 Lahainaluna next to the 76 station. So, there is,
there is, there is correction, corrected that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And, and with regard to running a vacation rental or
whatever. You have an application is that correct?
MR. LAUB: I've had an application for years and I first started the, when I, I would, I would be
working off the island so I would use my house as a vacation rental since 1989 off and on
when I wasn't here. That is correct. We were never, we made the application I believe in
2001 to have the, a permit for that and it's still in process.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But, but you're trying to come into compliance and,
and that's the, you know, that's the biggest thing that I just want to people to understand
is that, you know, you're not going to on this particular board, it's not like the Board of
Variances and Appeals, Board of Code Appeals is a little different.
MR. LAUB: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But anyway, I just wanted to ask the question because it was
asked of me and I figure we'll get it on the record.
MR. LAUB: I actually appreciate the opportunity to be able to cover those items.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. LAUB: Thank you, Ma'am.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. The Chair will make a nomination [sic] then,
Members, if you don't have any other questions for the nominee
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, Mr. Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: May ask for a brief recess, please?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Recess subject to the call of the Chair. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

11:47 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:49 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: . .(gavel). . . Committee of the Whole Committee meeting of
March 5, 2009 is now back in session. Members, prior to taking the vote for Mr. Laub if
any Members have any issues that they'd like to share with regards to the nominees?
And by the way I'll make this, you know, as well as for all of our other nominees if there
may be any issues that could potentially result in a possible conflict or maybe a
perception of conflict, you know, you are free to share that with the Committee Members
as well. So, anyway, one last chance. Seeing none, then the Chair will make a
recommendation to approve the appointment of Paul Laub to the Board of Code and [sic]
Appeals.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Balsa, seconded by Member Mateo.
Any discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it 9-0 to approve
Mr. Laub to the Board of Code and [sic] Appeals.
MR. LAUB: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for making the appearance here, Mr. Laub, to respond to
questions from the Committee. Thank you.
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Johnson, Kaho`ohalahala, Medeiros,
and
Pontanilla, Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo,
Nishiki,
Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of the nomination of Paul Laub to
the Board of Code Appeals.

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, next the Chair would like to move to the appointment to
the Maui Planning Commission. Mr. Warren Shibuya, if you could please come up and
take the stand--or shall, that's not a nice way of putting it. Just please come up and make
yourself available to the Committee Members. We did have, again, Members Baisa,
Nishiki, and Victorino making the request to have you appear before us, Mr. Shibuya.
So, we'll start this round now first with Mr. Nishiki, followed by Mr. Victorino and
Ms. Baisa. Mr. Nishiki, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How you doing, Warren?
MR. SHIBUYA: Good morning, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning. Was this a board that you requested to serve
on?
MR. SHIBUYA: Yes, I did.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And for what reason?
MR. SHIBUYA: I wanted to, see, I was actually with the Board of Variance and Appeals and
after my second term year there I volunteered for the GPAC, General Plan Advisory
Committee. And I served, I will be concluding my BVA activities now and also
concluded my GPAC activities. I did want to make sure that what we wrote actually goes
forward and be implemented and that's why I volunteered. Talking is nice but getting it
done is even better.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Finally, the Planning Commission unlike the Planning
Commission in Honolulu which is just advisory plays a major role in addressing ocean
developments. Your concern or thoughts?
MR. SHIBUYA: It is significant and I'd like to protect that as a valuable resource that Maui has.
It's an attraction for people outside and then throughout the world that would like to
experience this. And as far as protecting it, there's other balances that we need to
maintain. If you protect you have an avoidance. If you allow for some areas for people
to experience it it's how we allow this experience. Let me give you an example. If we
have an aquarium where people or children can touch, see, feel, smell the ocean activities
perhaps that's even nice. It's safe. If you allow them to swim outside then we need to
protect them with lifeguards or some means or technical means. You can have maybe
ramps made out or recreational boating areas which allows for the people to experience
some of these protected natural resources.
The other aspect is also the water flow from the top of the mountain; the concept of
ahupua'a from the mountain to the sea. If we can address this and you've addressed part
of it in Lahaina but there's also Kula water that needs to be addressed, too.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Finally, are you a Maui native?
MR. SHIBUYA: Yes. Born and raised on Maui. Actually, I grew up in Camp 5 Puunene and
then after the strike we had to move to Kula. But I did attend Kaunoa, Baldwin High
School, I went to University of Hawaii, and then served in the Armed Services.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and looking at what has happened to Maui as a
native are you, are you concerned about certain things and what are they?
MR. SHIBUYA: Absolutely. I used to swim in the ditch right next to Camp 5 Puunene. That
water was clear. Of course, I was not a hydrologist or a water quality expert at that time
but the water was clear. It was, I didn't catch any sicknesses or skin diseases or anything
like that. That's where we swam. Today, I go back and visit where I was born in Camp
5 Puunene . . . (change tape, start 3B). . . hospital area. There is a significant change and
I'm concerned with that because it reflects the quality of the water in our aquifers and
that is a concern that I would like to and that's why I'm part of the group that's trying to
restore the Ancient Auwahi Forest on leeward Maui side. If you bring this forest up, too
late for me, too late for us but two generations from now aloha. We might have a
recharging of fresh water into our aquifers rather than having a whole bunch of straws
sucking out from the same aquifer.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and you will have time?
MR. SHIBUYA: I hope so.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And a lot of questions you just answered that I
was going to ask you. A couple that I would like to bring forward. How long were you
gone from Maui?
MR. SHIBUYA: Over 32 years.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. SHIBUYA: But I've been back and forth. I taught at University of Hawaii for four years
and then I went into the Star Wars program for the National Defense.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And your background is in what? Your background?
MR. SHIBUYA: I have education. I have engineering program management, that sort of thing.
Program management is you manage a large project. It's an engineering project
developing satellites or rockets and it's not a manufactured mass production type of thing
because it's a one of a kind type of operation and you have what is called redundancies,
double, triple redundancies because we don't have long screwdrivers to fix it once we put
it in space.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, and that's a good point. And the last question I
have for you is you had mentioned already about the aquifer and ahupua'a system, and,
and water and the forest and all that. Besides that what do you see as Maui County our
biggest challenges that lay forward? Because you're going to be around and if you're on
the Planning Commission I think for five years, so you're going to be coming forward
with a number of issues. In your mind, what do you see as maybe the top two issues that
you would like us or like to work on to make Maui County a better place?
MR. SHIBUYA: One is, this first one, I would like to have us maintain a balance with our
culture. The culture in one sense we need to preserve some of these very important sites
yet if we tell the world that these are the sites that are important then everybody comes to
it and we actually have a problem there. And so, we need to, it's just like the ocean I was
trying to allude to, we welcome the people and we want them to learn about it, but we
don't want huge damages to result from this type of visiting. So, somehow we need to
manage this. We need to strike that balance. We need to share this.
The konohiki and the moku system, perhaps maybe we can work together and come out
with some kind of a balance in which we use the land that is most appropriate for this.
And that comes to my second one thus the concern for our self sustainment. Why are we
spending 93 percent of our income on fossil fuels, transporting this 2,500 miles and
putting our people at risk and jeopardy? This is unconscionable, totally unconscionable.
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We have energy all around us why can't we use that? Can we redirect ourselves towards
this? And I think we should.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I will agree with on that one all the way. Thank you,
Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Shibuya, for being here.
MR. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Warren, for being
here.
MR. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Before we start, I want to thank you for all your hard work on the
GPAC. I'm happy that it's over, over for you and that we can move on now to maybe
someday soon having a general plan. My question, let me tell you something, first of all,
and I think it's important. I don't know if everybody realizes that when these nominees
are suggested unless three Council Members put in the request to meet with them
publicly like we are today it doesn't happen. And in the last round, two of us asked and
there weren't three so we didn't have the opportunity. So, this time when I saw the
request from Member Victorino and Member Nishiki, I said well I'm going to join in too
so we'll have the opportunity. I think it's very good that we get to meet our
commissioners.
MR. SHIBUYA: I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that we get to ask you, you know, your question, ask you
questions and find out a little bit more about you. You know some of us know all of the
nominees and some of us don't so I think it's a great opportunity. I know that, you know,
you have a great background and that you are very involved in community affairs. What
do you see, what do you think of how the Planning Commission operates and do you see
any changes you'd like to make as a member?
MR. SHIBUYA: Well, I hope I can contribute to some of the resolving on how we use the lands.
I don't, as being one of nine members, I don't think I can change and get a revolution by
myself but I.. .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The power of one.
MR. SHIBUYA: I, I can still express my thoughts that I've shared with you. Sustainment is
very high. The balancing of our cultures, our host culture, as well as our current
technologies; somewhere along the line we need that balance, and we, we must work
towards that. If it's not within our vision it's never going to happen so.
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COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Well, I'm not going to ask you about time because anybody who
served on the GPAC is a time committed person. I don't know how many hours you all
spent. You aught to add it up. It would be very impressive.
MR. SHIBUYA: Well, I was very fortunate to be allowed to do that. I personally volunteered
for the infrastructure section, the economic development section, the land use section, the
cultural heritage section.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: You served on almost every one.
MR. SHIBUYA: I mean, you know, some of things you're passionate for and it's, it's not for
me. Too late for me but it's actually for the next generations coming to Maui. I
appreciated growing up here and if I can give back that's great.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: One last little question. Are you happy with the outcome of the
General Plan Committee work?
MR. SHIBUYA: Well, we did what we could in the amount of time that we had. We went
through a learning curve. Unfortunately, it was extended. The learning curve was not to,
it was challenging let's say but it allowed me to give more personal information research
time. I could talk to the department heads and I was lucky to do that. I did want to have
more of the department heads involved in this planning process because they have the
current data, the current directions, and that's what needed. You just can't look ahead
over the horizon without knowing where you are today and how your finances are in the
immediate future. This is what was very lacking for me and I, I still want to have this
meeting, bringing and implementing much of the ideas with the, the ways in how we
finance some of these projects. That's very important to me so that's why I raised my
hand and said five more years, hey, I can handle this, no problem.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Well, thank you very much. And the relevance of that question
is because you've mentioned that you wanted to see the follow-thru of the work that was
done in the GPAC on the Planning Commission. So, I, I totally understand your
motivation. Thank you so much for being here.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
MR. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Prior to recognizing Member Medeiros, the
Chair had made a request because there was a potential issue that needed to be brought up
and had requested the Planning Director to make a comment on, with regards to
Mr. Shibuya's nomination. So, the Chair would like to call upon Director Hunt to the
front. And the, the issue that was brought up, Members, was that Mr. Shibuya is
currently serving on the GPAC--and which by the way I'll commend you for your efforts.
-62-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 5, 2009

And should he be appointed to the Maui Planning Commission, in essence, he would be
reviewing his work now in a different role as a Planning Commissioner, now to review
the work of the GPAC. So, it was just brought to my attention and I felt compelled to get
a comment from the Planning Director. Director Hunt?
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Chair. Likewise, it was brought to my attention and just to give a little
background on the issues, as Warren noted, he was a member of the 25-member GPAC.
And the Maui Island Plan has now been sent up to the Planning Commission. And now
as a member of the Planning Commission if he's, if he's appointed, he would then be
reviewing the work that he did as part of the, the 25-member GPAC. Now, it's a little
unusual, and that's why the concern was brought to me. But I can tell you I've worked in
other jurisdictions where the council actually had an appointee down at the planning
commission level to serve for two reasons. One is to communicate council policy down
to the planning commission and also for the council member to report planning
commission actions back up at the council level. It does raise some, some issues at times,
particularly in objectivity.
And I think maybe to remove this from this immediate situation, think of a newspaper
reporter. They have to report a situation or, or a story, well, a good reporter will report it
to inform; and some reporters not so good, will report it to influence. And that's the
difference. I've talked to Warren about this issue. We talked to, we discussed this at the
last GPAC meeting, the last one. Thank you. And I'm comfortable with, with the
situation. I think it would facilitate communication between the two, between the two
boards or the previous board's actions. And, and I, I know Warren. I've observed him
on the, on the Committee and he is a moderate. He's balanced. He, frankly, there was
some, some, some strong factions on that GPAC Committee and, and I think Warren was
more of a moderate, in the middle. And I think, in my opinion he would, he would be
objective in just reporting the actions of the GPAC and not trying to influence or, or taint
his reporting of that. So that, that's just my, my thoughts.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Director. And that's very reassuring in having
observed or heard of Mr. Shibuya's performances both on the Board of Variances and the
GPAC. I know he always takes, looks at things very objectively and takes things from a
logical standpoint and not to go more towards emotion or speculation or conjecture. So, I
can certainly attest to that and I feel very comfortable with this consideration. Thank
you, Mr. Director.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORLNO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Medeiros, followed by Member Victorino.
CHAIR MOLINA: . .(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MOLINA: We're looking at questions for, uh, okay-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I wanted to question.. .
CHAIR MOLINA: You have a question for the Director?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Medeiros, if you, are you okay will yielding to Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's fine.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And the question I have for you is as far as you're
concerned, his objectivity and his ability knowing the plan, working on the plan coming
forward to the Planning Commission, you have no issue with that?
MR. HUNT: Yeah, my experience is that he has been objective in listening to both sides and he
hasn't been in an extreme position on that Committee. And just talking to him and
knowing him, I, I think he will be objective.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. HUNT: That's just my opinion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Corp. Counsel, if I may? Mr. Chair, if we could
ask Corp. Counsel? Would you see any challenge? 'Cause again I don't but, you know,
you're legal entity in our, you know, so what would you say?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Galazin?
MR. GALAZIN: You know, officially, we don't see any problem with, with it as well. You
know really. . .the big things are to make sure maintaining impartiality and disclosing any
kind of financial interest. We don't see that there would be a problem between GPAC
membership and, and now. . .then subsequent Planning Commission membership.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, Mr. Chair, I had no change in mind,
anyhow, but thank you very much. I appreciate that clarification.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Any other questions for the Planning
Director before he's excused? Mr. Nishiki?

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 5, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I'm, I'm a bit bothered by some of the statements so I'll
ask you for clarification, Jeff. You know you mentioned about people being, how did
you describe it? On one end or the other--how did you describe these people to be?
MR. HUNT: Urn.. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. How did you.. .
MR. HUNT: Factions or positions?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Position. What is wrong with somebody having a position? I
always have a position.
MR. HUNT: Well, I don't think there's anything wrong.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, okay. Okay.
MR. HUNT: I think, I think everyone has -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But, but you mentioned that -MR. HUNT: --should have a position.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --he wasn't on either side. So does that make him qualified
compared to somebody that had a position?
MR. HUNT: Well, I, I think the issue before you is more than just the, the fact that he's going to
be reviewing the GPAC's recommendations. The issue that was brought to me through
citizens was this, this, just that it was raised as a concern that he was on the GPAC and
now he'd be reviewing the GPAC's work as a member of the Planning Commission. In
my mind, it, it does raise issues and I, I gave examples of where I've worked in the past it
has raised issues and it's a matter of the person in that role--do you see that person being
a moderate; do you see that person being able to objectively describe the actions of the
GPAC and not try and influence them? And that's where I think you would want a
moderate position as opposed to one of the extremes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, he's not going to only handle that. He's going to be
handling a development and, and/or no development. And, and it's not only for that.
And, and the reason why I ask you that question and you come up today, Mr. Chairman,
is when I look at the lineup of who sits on the Commission--and I don't know if you
came and brought up some concerns, but I've got one, two--we got nine members sitting
on that Commission, right?
MR. HUNT: We will have nine.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, we will have nine. But you got three people with
definite real estate backgrounds. Would not that be a concern of yours that three out of
nine had real estate backgrounds when you, when you questioned somebody like the
applicant who doesn't have anything like that? He's an independent.
MR. HUNT: I think the Planning Commission should have a balance in their representations.
My, my role before you today is not to advocate for or against any individuals. I don't
feel comfortable coming forward. In all likelihood, I'll be working with this individual in
the near future. I was directed or requested by the Chair to address one specific issue and
that's
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, okay.
MR. HUNT: --that GPAC and Planning Commission role.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. I'm sorry. I, I thought maybe you came up and brought
that, brought that up--and that's where I have a concern. I'm done.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Any final questions for Director Hunt
before he is excused? Seeing none, thank you, Mr. Hunt, for making yourself available.
Member Medeiros, you have a question for the applicant?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And, Mr. Shibuya, thank you for
making yourself available both for public service and to be here today. I'm looking at
your application and pretty much your resume, and it's certainly impressive--your
education and your work background. But you list your position as PV Advisor. Is that
photovoltaic?
MR. SHIBUYA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. SHIBUYA: I help people.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And then I'm concluding that you're also a military
veteran because you belong to a veterans group and I see you had SEA duty. Is that
correct?
MR. SHIBUYA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, were you part of the Navy or were you part of a
contract?
MR. SHIBUYA: No, I was with the Air Force.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Air Force and you had SEA duty? Interesting.
. . . Okay. Very good ... (laughter).. .
MR. SHIBUYA: No, you see . .(inaudible). . . SEA is.. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: .(Inaudible). . aircraft carrier or what? . . . (laughter).. .
MR. SHIBUYA: Yeah, I want to clear that up. You're looking at abbreviate. . .acronym there.
SEA is Southeast Asia.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. Thank you . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Ah .. .
MR. SHIBUYA: So, it was Vietnam -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. SHIBUYA: --Thailand -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for clearing . . . (laughter). . . that up.
MR. SHIBUYA: --Philippines, Korea.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And then finally, your educational background, your
engineering is in what discipline?
MR. SHIBUYA: Primarily electrical. There's aerospace, a lot of aerospace.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. SHIBUYA: .(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
And so your educational background. . .with
your. . .employment background, I'm interested in how you can, how you would apply,
say, your engineering background to work on the Planning Commission?
MR. SHIBUYA: Well, I'm going to try and see if there's a possibility of putting sustainability
to use here. One of the alternatives would be geothermal. And looking through the MIT
report we have two possible sites; however, we need to work with the host culture
because they might not see this as a friendly opportunity here. This is an opportunity
perhaps if they would like it. I would be selecting or choosing and recommending people
try the Close System Geothermal also Ocean Thermal Energy Conversion, OTEC, that's
currently operating out in Keahole. That is very good because we have a couple sites
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they have identified around Maui that have 3,000 feet depths. With that surrounding us
we aught to take advantage of that and convert that cold water into electricity. Take the
same cold water, desalinate, sell the bottled water to the other people, bring in the money
from the outside. Also, aquaculture, take the expensive foods such as Maine Lobster,
abalone, opihi, table fish, things of this nature, grow them here. And, oh, by the way, by
the time the water gets a little warmer grow the algae that University of Hawaii is
experimenting with that produces jet fuel quality oil. Why not?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Mr. Shibuya, thank you very much. And, and I'm
sure you'll apply those same principles and, and your education and background, too. I
see where you have reduce fossil fuel dependency. We certainly need that and I'm sure
you have a plan for that, too. So, thank you for your testimony and for your, making
yourself available for public service. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. And boy I tell you, you made us really
hungry, Mr. Shibuya.
MR. SHIBUYA: Sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members, the Chair, the Chair.. .
MR. SHIBUYA: For the algae?
CHAIR MOLINA: That's right and all the fish and opihi. And I'm sure our ocean guru,
Mr. Nishiki, could certainly appreciate that as well. Members, the Chair is aware of the
time and we do have a Committee meeting scheduled for 1:30 under the leadership of
Member Johnson, the Economic and Agriculture and Recreational Committee. Prior to
the Chair making a recommendation on Mr. Shibuya, are there any Members that would
like to make any disclosures as to any involvement with Mr. Shibuya in some way or
other fashion? The Chair just would like to disclose for the record's purposes,
Mr. Shibuya's brother was a very active participant on my campaign in years past. But I
feel at this point, you know, obviously there's no financial gain now from his
involvement with me. Mr. Shibuya's brother has been a long-time friend since our
hanabata days, if you will, and I can tell you the Shibuya family, Mr. Shibuya himself, is
a very hard working, very, a very genuine person, man of integrity. And as you have
heard earlier with his work on the other boards, he takes things and looks at things from a
very logical, non-biased perspective. And so, I just wanted to disclose that to you,
Members. If you have any discomfort with me participating in the vote on this matter,
please say it now, otherwise I will go ahead and participate. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you, Chair. I, too, will have to fess up that Mr. Shibuya
and his wife Joanne have been on Team Baisa and they've been very active members and
very supportive. And I've really appreciated the opportunity to dialogue with him at
length about issues. And he and Joanne always bring a very balanced perspective to
discussions we have about issues. So, I'd like to disclose that. I'll also disclose that I did
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check to find out if I should declare a conflict of interest and was advised by Corp.
Counsel that there is none because there is no financial gain here. Thank you.
And thank you, Member Baisa, for disclosing that as well.
CHAIR MOLINA:
Member Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair. I, too, would like to
disclose that Mr. Shibuya has been a supporter of my, my campaign, but I have taken
under consideration, advisement and I see no conflict in me participating in this.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Kaho`ohalahala. Any final comments,
Members, before the Chair makes a recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Recommendation?
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Seeing no, no other comments, the Chair will recommend the
appointment and nomination of Warren Shibuya to the Maui Planning Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Moved by Member Victorino, seconded by Member Mateo. Any
discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by saying "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it 9-0
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Johnson, Kaho`ohalahala, Medeiros,
and
Pontanilla, Victorino, Vice-Chair Mateo,
Nishiki,
Chair Molina.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: Recommending APPROVAL of the nomination of
Warren Shibuya to the Maui Planning Commission.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Shibuya, for being here. We certainly appreciate it.
MR. SHIBUYA: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Council Members. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right. Members, the Chair would like to call for a two-minute recess to
confer with Staff. I do realize we have two more nominees for consideration; however,
we do have some time issues that we need to deal with. So, at this point, the Chair would
like to take a quick recess--meeting subject to the call of the Chair. Please don't go
anywhere. . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

12:19 p.m.

RECONVENE:

12:22 p.m.

CHAIR MOLINA:
. (gavel). . .
The Committee of the Whole meeting for
Thursday, March 5, 2009 is now back in session. Members, at this point because of the
time constraints we're facing and we have a Committee meeting at 1:30 under
Member Johnson's leadership, the Chair is looking at recessing this meeting. The Chair
did send out an e-mail to the, all the Members. Committee Secretary, do you have a
record of any responses from the Members? The Chair was looking at a recess date of
Tuesday, March 10 th at 9:00 a.m. in the Chambers. Ms. Sakamoto, do you have any
information that you could share with the Committee?
MS. SAKAMOTO: Mr. Chair, I have not received. . .responses from all of the Members. I do
know that Councilmember Mateo will not be able to attend. Member Baisa said that she
will be attending, and I believe Victorino and Pontanilla will not be able to attend.
CHAIR MOLINA: Right.
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MS. SAKAMOTO: And I'm still awaiting responses.
CHAIR MOLINA: Right. I believe, Mr. Pontanilla and Mr. Victorino, you will be at NACo,
attending that? Okay. And Member Mateo stated he won't be here. Ms. Baisa is okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: We'll start, Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, my understanding was 10:30 not at 9:00.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah, we do have a posted committee meeting at 10:30 for a settlement, but
the Chair did send an e-mail about the availability of Members at 9:00 a.m. to continue
this meeting for these agenda items.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think that's the confusion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Johnson? Oh, I'm sorry-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It means schedule changes, but I can do it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So, you can be here for the 9:00 a.m. session -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: --recessed session? Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I'll, I'll make myself available.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Member Johnson. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Is there a possibility, I don't know about the rest of the
Members about continuing after Jo Anne's meeting?
CHAIR MOLINA: Today? Um-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR MOLINA: --you know, the, the, based on what happened at the last Committee of the
Whole meeting and the Members not being available after Ms. Johnson's meeting, and
we do have a heavy Council meeting tomorrow, the Chair's preference was to give you
guys time to, you know, get ready for tomorrow's meeting. However, if that is a
suggestion you'd like to make?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, I would suggest that. And the reason is that, you
know, three of the Members will not be here . . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: . . . next week Tuesday and this is a very important
Commission-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And-COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --that we are hearing.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. All right. Chair will take that into consideration. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Mr. Chair, I also would like to see something like
that done primarily because I was one of the requestors for information and to, you know,
bring these people forward.
CHAIR MOLINA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And not to be able to participate at all would, I would feel
very disappointed at best. So-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. I would like to consider that; however,
unfortunately during the recess I did confer with the two nominees. . .about the
unlikelihood of us meeting the rest, for this afternoon. So, I think they're, they probably
have left and they're probably prepared to come back next week Tuesday. So,
unfortunately, if we, unless we can contact them, if that is the will of the majority, to
meet after Member Johnson's meeting? I know, Member Johnson, you have something
you -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I can't. I won't be available.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. And even the Chair himself, I'm faced with some commitments this
late afternoon as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Is there--whew, you know, I think this is very
important and, and I think myself and Mr. Pontanilla would like to participate, and so this
is the only, I'm looking at another date that, upon our return. Because I think next week,
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the week after, there's a special meeting because we have a few days before we get back
into Budget. I think Monday and Tuesday, and I think Monday was taken by one
committee, Ms. Baisa has brought her Committee forward for Monday morning if I'm
not mistaken or?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: Is that the

16 th

you're talking about?

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: I will not be here myself, so I'll let you guys, let you know that as well. I
will be off-island.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess no matter which way we go, you know.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. So, we just got to go with as much as we can. Member Medeiros,
followed by Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I sent an e-mail response, but I don't know if the
Staff got it because I think I sent it like 11:30 last night but, yeah, I'll be available for the
March 10 th .
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. So, for the record, we have Members Baisa, Johnson, Medeiros,
Molina available for Tuesday. Mr. Pontanilla, prior to Mr. Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. We're going to be presented the
Budget on March 13 th in the morning.
CHAIR MOLINA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA - There's no meeting scheduled after that, other than
reviewing the Budget. So, what's the possibility of maybe in the afternoon meeting, you
know, continuing this meeting.. .
CHAIR MOLINA: Recessing, I think, we're limited to five days. So, actually, the 10 th is the
fmal, is the extreme last day we can recess this meeting, otherwise, we'd have to consider
reposting it as a separate, you know, meeting item.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Can we meet like say, oh, you folks meet on the 10 th and
re a e ss, to, the. lath?
. . . Corporation Counsel?
- 73 -

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 5, 2009

CHAIR MOLINA: I think we did that before on another matter . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I just wanted advice from Corporation Counsel.
CHAIR MOLINA: I mean that, if that is, that will be the will of the body. Corporation Counsel,
Mr. Galazin?
MR. GALAZIN• Yeah, you certainly could meet on the 10 th and if you did not manage to get
through everything, you know, recess again to the 13 th . You obviously couldn't meet on
HP for five mmimuMes ammit them meress tip tdme i3 th in order to circumvent that.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Kaho`ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Chair, I'm just looking at the, the date. I just
need to reschedule, so I'll be available for 9:00.
CHAIR MOLINA: You could be available for 9:00 a.m. on Tuesday the 10 th ? Okay.
Mr. Nishiki, you have.. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
CHAIR MOLINA: You are available? Okay. Members, to date, we have six Members that
would make themselves available for the recessed meeting of 9:00 a.m. on
Tuesday, March 10th . Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to let, remind people too that the Members that
will be off-island will be able to participate at the Council meeting because this is just the
Committee meeting. The measure will go on to the full Council. So, if they want to have
those people there and they desperately need to ask those questions, that's the
opportunity, that's where the real action takes place.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So that opportunity will be there.
CHAIR MOLINA: That's right. And, of course, that will be the call of the Council Chair--if he
would permit having the nominees be present. But of course this does not preclude any
Member from, if you have a pressing question, you can call the nominee to, you know,
share with them what your thoughts are with regards to their nomination as well. So, it's
just unfortunate the circumstances have come out this way, Members, but the Chair is
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going to recommend going with the recessed date of March 10 th at 9:00 a.m. I know
we'll be at, I don't want to say "skeleton crew", but we have six Members which is still,
you know, sufficient to establish quorum. Mr. Pontanilla. . . . (change tape, start 4A).. .
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. If for some reason, you know, and not to defend
these three people that have already been nominated by the Administration, should on
your March 10 meeting that all three is not nominated by this body then, of course, you
know, the Council meeting, we cannot even ask questions.
CHAIR MOLINA: We wouldn't, we wouldn't get to the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Exactly. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, that's not true.
CHAIR MOLINA: Hang on. In the event of say there, you don't have the five votes to move
them forward, it will basically be deferred and then come, if we don't meet on it again
come, after March 31 st they would be deemed approved. Am I correct, Corporation
Counsel? I'm just trying to get the, so if they're not approved by this body, if they don't
get the five votes--can you clarify that for me?
MR. GALAZIN: Yeah, are we talking specifically about the, the.. .
CHAIR MOLINA: So, for example, let's say we have six Members, it ends up being, saying a
three-three deadlock, they did not get the five, get five votes to move on.
MR. GALAZIN: Yeah. Excuse me a second while I look. You know, sorry, I apologize, Chair,
that I put everything away while we were discussing the extension. So, off the top of my
head, I believe that, that would be correct--but let me, if you have further discussion, I
can just boot everything up and relook again.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Member Johnson, you had a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and it's always been my understanding that even
though a measure, because you're reporting out, even if you discharge the Committee of
further consideration or whatever, if, if you can't get sufficient votes or resolution to the
issue, it still comes forward. It's always come forward to the full Council for either the
up or the down. And at that meeting, to my understanding, you can basically reverse the
action in Committee. Because we have reversed actions in, you know, that have been
made in Committee before. So that's my take on it. It doesn't mean that it's dead and it
lays in the Committee 'cause it's part of a whole -CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --cadre, you know, of nominees. So it would be deemed
disapproved if you don't get votes to support it, and then it moves on to the full Council.
So, I just disagree with, that it's going to lay in Committee. It's never done that before.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Members, any other comments? All right. Well, I'm sure this, we'll
reserve that discussion for another time. So, Members, for the record, it's 12:30 on
Thursday, March 5, 2009. We will recess this meeting of the Committee of the Whole
until Tuesday, March 10 th at 9:00 a.m. All right? Very good. This meeting is in recess
. . .(gavel). . .

RECESS: 12:32 p.m.
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